
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

7:00 pm Town Council Meeting 

I. Call to Order:  

II. Opening Ceremonies 

A. Roll Call:   

B. Pledge of Allegiance:   

C. Recognition of Visitors:   

D. Announcements:  

III. General Citizen Comments 

IV. Review/Adoption of Agenda 

V. Approval / Rejection of Minutes: 

A. ACTION ITEM: Approval/ Rejection of Town Council Minutes from the June 10th, 2024, Town 

Council Meeting Minutes.   

B. ACTION ITEM: Approval/ Rejection of Town Council Minutes from the June 10th, 2024, Town 

Council Meeting Executive Session Minutes.   

VI. Departmental Reports:   

A. Mayor S. Lobdell  

1. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote on appointment of council member. 

i. Oath of Office for newly elected Council Member 

2. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote on appointment of one Board of Elections 
Member.   

i. Possible swearing in of new Board of Elections member.  

3. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote on appointment of Planning Commission 
Member(s).   

i. Possible swearing in of new Planning Commission Member(s).  

4. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote on appointment of one Board of 
Adjustment Member.  

i. Possible swearing in of new Board of Adjustment member.  

5. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote on Rules for Town Meetings 
B. New Castle County Councilman David Carter  

C. Town of Townsend Police Chief’s Report 

D. Town Solicitor Lisa Hatfield  

E. Town Engineer Erik Gruenes 

1. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote regarding Bid(s) received for the 

Townsend Municipal Park Irrigation System. 

F. Town Manager Julie Goodyear 

Townsend Town Council Meeting Agenda  

July 10th, 2024 @ 7:00 pm 

VIA CONFERENCE CALL & Town Hall 

141 Main St, Townsend, DE 19734 

Town Meetings will be held both in person and in a virtual format.  

  

Those wishing to attend virtually may dial 1(301)715-8592.  When directed, provide 

following meeting ID 827- 6421-7575# and then the following password 361631# to 

enter the meeting.  If you choose to access the meeting online click the following link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82764217575?pwd=aHI4RDhTZ0xjME1HV0ZOcHRxS

HZ3QT09   

 

Residents will be able to view documents posted to the meeting tab on the Town 

website at https://townsend.delaware.gov  or by joining the meeting via computer.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82764217575?pwd=aHI4RDhTZ0xjME1HV0ZOcHRxSHZ3QT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82764217575?pwd=aHI4RDhTZ0xjME1HV0ZOcHRxSHZ3QT09
https://townsend.delaware.gov/


Page 2 of 2 
 

 

VII. Committee Reports: 

A. Finance Committee: Chair: Mayor S. Lobdell, Co-Chair: Councilman J. Bangura 

1. Review and possible discussion on the May 2024 Budget vs. Actual Reports.   

2. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote regarding Resolution 2024-006 A Resolution to 

Affirm the Adoption of the FY 25 Municipal Budget.   

B. Human Resources Committee: Chair: Councilman Suhr, Co-Chair: Mayor S. Lobdell 

C. Public Works and Land Use Development Committee: Chair: Councilman J. Bangura, Co-

Chair: Councilman M. Chapman 

1. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote regarding Remington and Vernik 

Engineers (RVE) proposal to provide Engineering Design and Construction 

Management Services for the 2024 Road Program.  

2. *ACTION ITEM: Discussion and possible vote regarding preliminary plans for the Major 
Subdivision with re-zoning request for Parcel #: 25-008.00-002, 100 Karins Boulevard. 

D. Public Safety Committee: Chair: Councilman M. Suhr, Co-Chair: TBD 

E. Community Engagement Committee: TBD 

1. Discussion on upcoming events.  

F. Code Review Committee: Chair: Mayor S. Lobdell, Co-Chair: Councilman M. Chapman 

1. ACTION ITEM: Discussion and first reading of Ordinance 2024-003 An Ordinance to 

Amend Chapter 12 of the Townsend Municipal Code as Related to Trash and 

recycling Collection and Chapter 4 of the Townsend Municipal Code as Related to the 

Fee Schedule. 

2. *ACTION ITEM: Discussion and first reading of ordinance 2024-001 An Ordinance to 

amend Section 18.04.010 of the Town Code to Further Clarify Permitting 

Requirements.  

G. Veterans & Social Services Committee: Chair: Councilman Chapman, Co-Chair: Councilman M. 

Suhr  

1. Discussion of Butterfly Garden plans and budget 

2. Discussion of Veterans Raffle plans and budget 

VIII. Discussion of future agenda items.  

IX. Recess Council Meeting to Convene Executive Session. 

X. Convene Executive Session: Pursuant to 29 Del. C. §§10004(b)(2) and (4), the Town Council will 

consider a motion to meet in executive session for a strategy session, which will include legal 

advice or opinions from an attorney-at-law, with respect to potential litigation, as well as 

discussions that may have an adverse effect on the bargaining or litigation position of the Town, 

and 29 Del. C. §10004 (B)(9), the Town Council will consider a motion to meet in executive session 

for a strategy session, to address personnel matters.   

XI. Close Executive Session & Re-convene Council Meeting. 

XII. ACTION ITEM: Possible vote of Council.    

XIII. Adjournment.    

 



1

Mariaelena Rivera

From: Troy Geiger
Sent: Friday, July 5, 2024 12:27 PM
To: Townhall
Subject: Staying on Planning Commission 

Hi, 
 
I am interested on staying as a commissioner for the Townsend Planning Commission for another term. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  I can come down and sign any paperwork however  I am 
away until July 15th. 
 
Kind regards,  
Troy Geiger 
 
 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 



1

Mariaelena Rivera

From: Mariaelena Rivera
Sent: Tuesday, June 25, 2024 11:13 AM
To: Sean Waterland
Subject: RE: Interest in becoming a member 

Good afternoon,  
 
I wanted to reach out to advise you are unable to serve on the BOA due to the State Code requirement for a 
member to be a resident.  However, you may serve on the Planning Commission. Therefore, Council will 
be considering your interest for the Planning Commission.  
 
Kind regards,  
Mariaelena Rivera 
Town Clerk 
 
Town of Townsend 
P:302.378.8082 | Fax: 302.378.7099 
mrivera@townsend.delaware.gov  
 

 
Town of Townsend 
P.O. Box 223 | 141 Main Street 
Townsend, Delaware  19734  
https://townsend.delaware.gov/ 
 
 
Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail communication and any attached documentation may be 
privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure and is intended only for the use of the designated 
recipient(s). It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized person. The use, distribution, transmittal 
or re-transmittal by an unintended recipient of this communication is strictly prohibited without express approval in writing 
or by e-mail. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail, please delete it from your system without copying it and 
notify the above sender so that the e-mail address may be corrected. 
 
 

From: Mariaelena Rivera  
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2024 2:00 PM 
To: Sean Waterland <waterland131@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: Interest in becoming a member  
 
Good afternoon, 
 
Thank you for submitting your interest to the Town.  I have forwarded your interest to Town Council.  
 
They are looking to nominated and possible appoint during the July 10th Council meeting which begins at 7 pm.  



2

 
Kind regards,  
Mariaelena Rivera 
Town Clerk 
 
Town of Townsend 
P:302.378.8082 | Fax: 302.378.7099 
mrivera@townsend.delaware.gov  
 

 
Town of Townsend 
P.O. Box 223 | 141 Main Street 
Townsend, Delaware  19734  
https://townsend.delaware.gov/ 
 
 
Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail communication and any attached documentation may be 
privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure and is intended only for the use of the designated 
recipient(s). It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized person. The use, distribution, transmittal 
or re-transmittal by an unintended recipient of this communication is strictly prohibited without express approval in writing 
or by e-mail. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail, please delete it from your system without copying it and 
notify the above sender so that the e-mail address may be corrected. 
 
 

From: Sean Waterland <waterland131@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 6:41 PM 
To: Mariaelena Rivera <MRivera@townsend.delaware.gov> 
Subject: Interest in becoming a member  
 

Good evening Mariaelena,   
 
I am interested in serving on either board (commission/Board of adjustments) or both if needed.  
Please let me know the next steps.  
 
Thank you for your consideration  
 
Sean Waterland  
East Coast Aviation LLC.  
1505 Clayton Delaney Rd. 
Clayton DE,19938 
C.302-650-9889 
O.302-223-8199 
www.Eastcoastaviation.net 

 This message originated from outside the organization 



3

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

 
 
 





This message originated from outside the organization

From: Sheryl Rojas
To: Townhall
Subject: BOA
Date: Thursday, June 13, 2024 7:33:08 AM

Good morning,

I am will to serve 2 years on the BOA. I feel my Planning Commission experience is a huge
asset to this Board.

Sheryl Rojas

Sent from AOL Mobile Mail

mailto:unigrad@aol.com
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov


TOWNSEND POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
661 South Street, PO Box 223, Townsend, DE 19734 

Office 302-464-1262 Dispatch 302-739-4865 EMERGENCY 911 
 

JULY 2024 Town Council Meeting 
The information provided herein is from June 1, 2024 – June 30, 2024 

 
1)  27 Total Calls for Service  

• 1 – Sex Offense 

• 1 – Fraud 

• 1 – Assist Fire Department 

• 1 – Parking Violation 

• 1 – Warrant Service 

• 1 – Disabled Vehicle 

• 2 – Follow up reports 

• 2 -  Noise Complaints 

• 2 – Alarms 

• 2 – Traffic Hazard’s 

• 2 – 911 Disconnects 

• 3 – Property Checks 

• 4 – Public Assist’s 

• 4 – Domestic Incidents   
 

2) Conducted 5 School Traffic Details 

 

3) Participated in 4 Community Outreach Events 

 

4) Received $373,260 Grant from the State of Delaware 

 

5) Total Grants received $705,373.33 as of July 1, 2024 

 

6) Total equipment savings 105,966.58, as of June 29, 2023 
 

 

Sincerely,  

Robert J. Longo, Chief of Police  



 
 

 

TOWN OF TOWNSEND - MONTHLY ENGINEERING REPORT | JUNE 2024 

 

TO: Julie Goodyear, Town Manager 

FROM: Erik Gruenes, PE 

RE: Town of Townsend | Monthly Engineering Report 

DATE: July 5, 2024 

 
Remington & Vernick Engineers (RVE) is pleased to provide the Town of Towsend this status update 

for the various capital and planning projects. 

 

Should you have any questions please contact me at (302) 287-7460. 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

1. Surface Water Matching Planning Grant Program (DNTET101) 

a) The preparation of the Cannery Lane drainage design plans and specifications are in 

process by RVE. The project is approximately 90% complete. 

b) RVE met with GIS Team and is planning site visit for confirmation of property parcel 

locations in relation to the roadway ditches.  Planning & Budgeting is underway. 

c) Construction easements may be required to complete the project. Survey verification 

required to confirm the location of existing and proposed drainage swales. 

 
2. Townsend Municipal Park Irrigation (DNTET105) 

a) RVE submitted Letter of Recommendation to the Town for the construction bid. RVE 

recommends the bidder Delaware Environmental Construction Services perform the 

proposed work. 

b) Construction of Electrical Work is underway and should be finished up soon. 

c) The Bid Opening was May 28, 2024, at 10:00 AM. One supplier, Delaware Environmental 

Construction Services, submitted a bid of $107,755.  

d) The Electrical work was awarded to Generation Electric Services for the amount of 

$23,500. 

e) A request for additional grant funding was submitted on March 12, 2024, to the ORPT 

Planning Manager to determine whether more funding is available for the project. 

Supplementary funding is required due to the change of scope to use the existing wells 

pumps as the water source for the irrigation system and the increase in construction cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Monthly Engineer Report 

Town of Townsend 

July 5, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Continued | Townsend Municipal Park Irrigation (DNTET105) 

f) Temporary electrical connection | Lifetime conducted well pump testing on November 

8, 2023. Well #1 & 2 tested positive and are in good working order. 

3. 2023 - 2024 Townsend General Engineering (DNTET107) 

2024 Road Program 

a) RVE submitted revised Proposal of Work for the 2024 Road Program on June 12, 2024. 
b) Public Works Committee finalized the road selection on May 15, 2024, decided to place 

focus on Ginn Street. 

c) The Town decided to hold off on the inclusion of other roads and ADA curb ramps at 

various locations throughout the Town. 

Finley Street Pole Barn 

a) Townsend was sent RVE pole barn proposal to review on May 1, 2024. 

b) USACE issued Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination letter received on March 6, 

2024. The proposed pole barn design does not require a Department of the Army permit. 

c) Project scope finalized in February 2024. 

d) On December 20, 2023, USACE requested a more detailed concept plan showing the 

proposed development on the site (i.e. access road, parking). A detailed concept plan was 

given to the USACE by January 31, 2024. 

e) Final submission of USACE Nationwide Permit on November 27, 2023. Review 

completed by January 26, 2024. 

f) Received environmental review by DNREC on September 29, 2023. 



Monthly Engineer Report 

Town of Townsend 

July 5, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

 

PLANNING PROJECTS 

1. Townsend Village I (DNTEP013) 

a) Waiting on pending encroachments resolution by Developer. 

b) Open Space Program is currently being handled by the Developers legal department. 
c) Assessment of vegetation growth scheduled in spring of 2024. 

d) The Developer completed the restoration of the existing stormwater basins located behind 

231 Edgar Road & behind Marilyn Court. The work included re-grading existing slopes, 

stabilizing slopes with erosion control matting, and replacing deteriorated outfall pipes. 

 

2. The Woods at Hidden Creek (DNTEP082) 

a) RVE will continue to review permit plans for development. 

b) RVE submitted revised financial security and inspection escrow letter for Phase 5: Lots 

57 - 73 & 184 - 193 (27 Lots) construction on April 26, 2024. 

c) Construction of residential lots in Phase 2 is ongoing on the following roads: Leatherwood 

Road, Zinnia Circle and Nightshade Way. 

d) The listed lots are currently under construction: 

Lot 8, 9, 13, 20, 26, 29, 31, & 32. 
e) Lines and Grades plan review completed for Lot 17. 

f) There are approximately (20) houses built in the development to date. 



June 20, 2024 

Ms. Julie Goodyear 

Town Manager 

Town of Townsend 

141 Main Street 

Townsend, DE 19734 

RE: Letter of Recommendation 

Townsend Municipal Park Irrigation System 

0 Edgar Road 

Townsend, DE 19734 

Town of Townsend 

RVE File#: DNTET105 

Dear Ms. Goodyear: 

Remington & Vernick Engineers (RVE) has reviewed the bids received on May 28, 2024, for the above 

referenced project, and has found no discrepancies in the bid submitted by the apparent low bidder, 

Delaware Environmental Construction Services (hereafter referred to as "Contractor"). A total of 1 bid 

was received for this project in the amount of $107,755.00.  

The Contractor submitted their bid for the Base Bid work in the amount of $107,755.00. A copy of the 

bid tabulation has been enclosed for your reference.   

RVE therefore recommends the award of the Base Bid, in the total amount of $107,755.00, contingent 

upon funds being available and upon receiving authorization to award from all funding agencies.   

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office at (302) 287-7460. 

Sincerely, 

REMINGTON & VERNICK ENGINEERS 

By 

Erik Gruenes, P.E. 

Town Engineer 



Letter of Recommendation 

Townsend Municipal Park Irrigation System  

0 Edgar Road  

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Enclosure 

 

cc:  Kelsey Gallagher, Town of Townsend, Administrative Assistant (via email) 

 Jennifer Helms, Town of Townsend, Financial Officer (via email) 

             Mariaelena Rivera, Town of Townsend, Town Clerk (via email)
             Michael Tholstrup, MPA, AICP, CPSI, DNREC, Parks Planning Manager (via email)  

Christopher J. Fazio, P.E., C.M.E., Executive Vice President  

             Dominick Falcone, EIT, Project Manager  

Raymond Ruczynski, Jr., Manager of Construction Inspection Services 



 

 

 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

2024-006 

A Resolution to Affirm the Adoption of the FY 25 Municipal Budget 

A RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE APPROVAL OF AND PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF A 

BUDGET FOR TOWN OF TOWNSEND, DELAWARE, FOR THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS BEGINNING 

JULY 1, 2024, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025, APPROPRIATING MONEY FOR EACH ITEM OF 

EXPENDITURE THEREIN PROVIDED FOR, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 802 of the Town of Townsend Charter, the Finance 
Committee, Town Manager, Financial Officer and Town Council has made a comprehensive 
study and review of the proposed budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the finding and conclusion of the Town of Townsend Finance Committee, Town 

Manager, Financial Officer and Town Council that the anticipated revenues and expenditures for 

the calendar year appear to be as accurate as possible for budgetary purposes; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF TOWNSEND COUNCIL, TOWNSEND, 

DELAWARE: 

Section I. This resolution shall be known as the budget resolution for the Town of Townsend for 

the twelve (12) month period beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. The attached 

budget, incorporated herein as if set out word for word and figure for figure, reflects estimated 

revenues and expenditures as set forth on the succeeding pages. The budget includes a property 

tax rate of .008% of each property’s assessed value.  This property tax rate remains unchanged 

from the previous year.   

Section 2. The respective funds for each item of expenditure proposed in the budget for Fiscal 

Year 2025 are hereby approved and adopted for the operation of the Town of Townsend by the 

Town Council on this date and constitute an appropriation of funds which are lawfully applicable 

to the items contained within the budget. This budget may be altered or revised by action of the 

Town Council and unpledged funds may be subsequently appropriated to another purpose 

except as prohibited by law. 

Section 3. The Town Council hereby adopts the FY 2025 Budget approved and recommended by 

the Finance Committee of the Town of Townsend, as presented to Town Council on June 10th, 

2024. This resolution is effective July 1, 2024.   

Section 6. The adoption of this budget authorizes the supplementation of cash on hand in the 

amount of $208,000 to ensure a balanced budget.   

Sponsor:  

Mayor S. Lobdell 

Councilman J. Bangura 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town of Townsend to be affixed 

this 10th day of July 2024.  

 
 
Passed and Approved this 10th day of July 2024. 
 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND  
 
  
Scott Lobdell, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mariaelena Rivera, Town Clerk 

Vote of Council Yea Na Abs 

Mayor Lobdell     

CM J. Mertz    

CM J. Bangura    

CM M. Chapman    

CM M. Suhr    

 



DRAFT
General Fund Police Police Grants ARPA Total

Account Description  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed 

Total Administrative Revenues 979,400.00 403,000.00             -                      -                       

Total Permits & Licenses Revenues 349,800.00       

Total Grant Revenues 373,700.00       -                           21,100.00          501,200.00         

Total Park & Recreation  Revenues 10,300.00         

Transfer from Fund Balance 208,000.00             

01 General Fund Revenue Total 1,713,200.00 611,000.00 21,100.00 501,200.00 2,846,500.00

General Fund Police Police Grants ARPA

General Fund Expenditures:  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed  FY25 Proposed 

Total Administrative Expenditures 596,800.00       63,600.00               -                      -                       

Total Salary Expenditures 552,300.00       358,900.00             12,700.00          

Total Code & Planning Expenditures 139,900.00       

Total Public Works Expenditures 49,700.00         

Total Street Expenditures 79,200.00         

Total Community Events Expenditures 12,400.00         

Total Capital Expenditures 93,900.00         377,500.00             8,400.00             501,200.00         

01 General Fund Expend Total 1,524,200.00 800,000.00 21,100.00 501,200.00 2,846,500.00

189,000.00        (189,000.00)            -                      -                       -                  

TOWN OF TOWNSEND
FY25 DRAFT BUDGET

Page 1 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Revenues:

Impact Fees: Fire House Impact Fees     15,000.00                              

Franchise Fees                          20,000.00                              

Interest Income - Investments                        20,000.00                              

Interest Income - Bank Account 35,000.00                              

Property Information Requests 2,000.00                                

Filing Fees                             

Property Transfer Taxes                 250,000.00                           

Real Estate Property Tax                633,200.00                           

Grass Cutting Fees                      1,500.00                                

Violations, Fines & Penalties                      1,000.00                                

Rental Registration Fee                 1,700.00                                

Total Administrative Revenues 979,400.00                           

Impact Fees: General Impact Fees        70,000.00                              

Impact Fees: Roadway Impact Fees        55,000.00                              

Impact Fees: Sidewalk Impact Fee        10,000.00                              

Permits and Fees: Certificate of Occupan 6,300.00                                

Permits and Fees: Administrative Fees   12,000.00                              

Permits and Fees: Plan Revision Fee     200.00                                   

Permits and Fees: Inspections Fees      400.00                                   

Permits and Fees: Contractors Licenses  19,200.00                              

Permits and Fees: Business Licenses     20,000.00                              

Permits and Fees: Review Lines & Grades 13,800.00                              

Town of Townsend

FY25 DRAFT General Fund Budget

Page 2 of 10



Town Permits: Plumbing                  3,500.00                                

Town Permits: Sheds Permit              500.00                                   

Town Permits: HVAC                      3,000.00                                

Town Permits: Fence Permit              2,900.00                                

Town Permits: Driveways/Sidewalk permit 100.00                                   

Town Permits: Deck Permit               800.00                                   

Town Permits: Patio permit              600.00                                   

Town Permits: Finished Basement         1,000.00                                

Town Permits: New Home Permit           120,000.00                           

Town Permits: Grading Review            

Town Permits: Remodel Permit            1,000.00                                

Town Permits: Pools & Spas Permit       2,000.00                                

Town Permits: Misc. Permit              2,500.00                                

Town Permits: Solar                     5,000.00                                

Total Permits & Licenses Revenues 349,800.00                           

Municipal Street Aid Grant              59,200.00                              

Grants Revenue                          314,500.00                           

Total Grant Revenues 373,700.00                           

Park rental                             1,500.00                                

Community Events: Donations             1,800.00                                

Town Fair Donation                      5,000.00                                

Community Events: Town Fair             2,000.00                                

Total Park & Recreation  Revenues 10,300.00                             

01 General Fund Revenue Total 1,713,200.00                        

Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Impact Fees: Fire House Impact Fees     15,000.00                              

Page 3 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Advertising                             150.00                                   

Advertising - BOA                       150.00                                   

Accounting Audit                        30,000.00                              

Computer Support                        26,500.00                              

Software Support                        22,000.00                              

DE League of Local Governmts            2,800.00                                

Decorations                             1,000.00                                

Elections Expense                       1,000.00                                

Copier Maintenance Agreement            3,500.00                                

Town Insurance (General Liab & Property) 26,000.00                              

Maintenance:Town Hall Cleaning/Pest Crtl 2,400.00                                

Membership Fees                         500.00                                   

General Town Hall Expenses              10,000.00                              

Office Equipment: Miscellaneous         2,000.00                                

Security System @ 141 Main Street       1,500.00                                

Office Supplies                         2,800.00                                

Flowers & Gifts                         1,000.00                                

Code Red                                3,000.00                                

Postage & Delivery                      4,300.00                                

Postage & Delivery - BOA                300.00                                   

Town Merchandise/Uniforms               700.00                                   

Professional Fees: General Legal        60,000.00                              

Professional Fees: New Hire/Urgent Care 500.00                                   

Board of Adjustment                     5,000.00                                

IPA Services                            1,000.00                                

Subscription Fee                        2,400.00                                

Training Classes                        2,500.00                                

Trash Collection Service                241,200.00                           

Travel & Entertainment                  1,000.00                                

Travel & Entertaiment: Meals            500.00                                   

Utilities - Town Hall: Internet         2,000.00                                

Page 4 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Utilities - Town Hall: Electric         3,600.00                                

Utilities - Town Hall: Heating Fuel     1,900.00                                

Utilities - Town Hall: Sewer fee        200.00                                   

Utilities - Town Hall: Telephones       3,400.00                                

Utilities - Town Hall:Cell Phones       3,000.00                                

Utilities - Town Hall: Water            900.00                                   

Street Lights:  400 Main Street         300.00                                   

Street Lights: Townsend Village I       23,000.00                              

Street Lights: TVII East (Karins Blvd)  49,500.00                              

Street Lights: TVII West (W Founds St)  3,000.00                                

Street Lights: Old Town                 15,900.00                              

Street Lights:Townsend Stn(Brook Ramble) 14,400.00                              

Street Lights: Hidden Creek             5,000.00                                

Total Administrative Expenditures 596,800.00                           

Payroll: Salaries & Hourly              414,500.00                           

Payroll: FICA/Medicare - Company match  31,700.00                              

Payroll: Group Health Insurance         75,000.00                              

Payroll: Dental Insurance               4,500.00                                

Payroll: Simple IRA                     7,400.00                                

Payroll: Companion Life Insurance       5,100.00                                

Payroll: Workers Compensation Insurance 4,000.00                                

Payroll: Vision                         1,000.00                                

Payroll: Salaries & Hourly - Christmas B 4,600.00                                

Payroll: Unemployment Insurance Tax     1,500.00                                

Payroll: Payroll/Check Processing       2,700.00                                

Payroll: Mileage Reimbursement          300.00                                   

Total Salary Expenditures 552,300.00                           

Professional Fees: General Engineering  60,000.00                              

Page 5 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Professional Fees: Code Enf/Inspections 65,100.00                              

Professional Fees: Lot Grading Reviews  13,800.00                              

Charter/Comp Plan Fees                  1,000.00                                

Total Code & Planning Expenditures 139,900.00                           

Town Equipment Fuel                     3,000.00                                

Park Maintenance Expense                35,000.00                              

Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance           3,700.00                                

Public Works Equipment                  4,300.00                                

Public Works Uniforms                   1,200.00                                

Town Landscaping & Beautification      2,500.00                                

Total Public Works Expenditures 49,700.00                             

Street Repairs: Maintenance             59,200.00                              

Street Repairs: Snow Removal            20,000.00                              

Total Street Expenditures 79,200.00                             

Community Relations                     600.00                                   

Community Relations: Public Works and Land Use     100.00                                   

Community Relations: Public Safety      100.00                                   

Community Relations: Veterans           500.00                                   

Community Events Expense                3,000.00                                

Community Events: Town Fair             7,000.00                                

Community Events: Christmas             500.00                                   

National Wildlife Foundation/Habitats   600.00                                   

Total Committee/Community Events Expenditures 12,400.00                             

Capital Expenses                        93,900.00                              

93,900.00                             

01 General Fund Expend Total 1,524,200.00                        

Page 6 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Revenues:

Impact Fees: Public Safety              22,500.00                              

Fines - Police                          3,000.00                                

Grant Revenue                           373,300.00                           

Miscellaneous Income                    4,200.00                                

Transfers In                            208,000.00                           

Total Police Revenues 611,000.00                           

Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Community Relations                     1,000.00                                

Repairs & Maint - Vehicles              6,400.00                                

Repairs & Maint - Equipment             2,000.00                                

PD Bldg Expenses                        800.00                                   

Computer/Software Expense               900.00                                   

PD Cleaning                             1,200.00                                

PD Pest Control                         800.00                                   

PD Equipment                            1,000.00                                

PD Office Equipment                     1,800.00                                

Postage & Delivery                      500.00                                   

Prisoner Meals                          100.00                                   

Training/Weapon Qualifications     4,800.00                                

Office Supplies                         500.00                                   

Cleaning Supplies                       400.00                                   

DUI Blood Draws                         100.00                                   

Memberships & Subscriptions 400.00                                   

Fuel                                    11,000.00                              

Town of Townsend

FY25 DRAFT Police Budget

Page 7 of 10



Account Description FY25 Proposed Budget

Expenditures:

Insurance - (Gen Liability & Property)  8,000.00                                

Uniforms: PD                            3,900.00                                

Professional Fees: Legal Services       2,500.00                                

Utilities - PD: Cell Phones             5,100.00                                

Utilities - PD: Heating Fuel            2,800.00                                

Utilities - PD: Sewer                   200.00                                   

Utilties - PD: Water                    400.00                                   

Utilities - PD: Electric                4,000.00                                

Utilities - PD: Phone/Internet          3,000.00                                

Total Administrative Expenditures 63,600.00                             

Payroll: Gross Pay                      257,000.00                           

Payroll: Overtime                       10,000.00                              

Payroll: Police Pension                 38,500.00                              

Payroll: FICA                           19,700.00                              

Payroll: Group Health Insurance         13,200.00                              

Payroll: Dental                         1,600.00                                

Payroll: Companion Life Insurance       5,000.00                                

Payroll: Workers Compensation Insurance 8,400.00                                

Payroll: Vision                         400.00                                   

Payroll: Holiday Bonus/Luncheon         3,300.00                                

Payroll: Unemployment Insurance Tax     1,000.00                                

Payroll: PMA Processing Fee             800.00                                   

Total Salary Expenditures 358,900.00                           

Capital Expense - PD                    377,500.00                           

Total Capital Expenditures 377,500.00                           

Total Police Expenditures 800,000.00                           

Page 8 of 10



Account Description

FY25 Proposed 

Budget

Revenues:

Balance tranferred from prior year 4,300.00             

Police Grants Revenue                   16,800.00           

04 Police Grants Fund Revenue Total 21,100.00           

Expenditures:

Overtime                                12,700.00           

FICA                                    -                       

Police Equipment                          8,400.00             

04 Police Grants Fund Expend Total 21,100.00           

TOWN OF TOWNSEND
FY25 DRAFT Police Grants Budget

Page 9 of 10



Account Description

FY25 Proposed 

Budget

Revenues:

Grants Revenue                          501,200.00             

03 Grants Revenue Fund Revenue Total 501,200.00             

Account Description

FY25 Proposed 

Budget

Expenditures:

Capital Expenses - Unassigned 20,638.50               

Capital Expenses - Pole Barn     200,000.00             

Capital Expenses - Pole Barn  - Engineering    53,900.00               

Capital Expenses - Irrigation for Park 28,900.00               

Capital Expenses - security enhancements at PD 1,078.00                 

Capital Expenses - Cameras at park 4,960.00                 

Capital Expenses - Cameras at park 2 years surveillance 3,223.50                 

Town portion of ORPT parks and trails 95,000.00               

electrical services for park irrigation 23,500.00               

Town portion of stormwater grant 50,000.00               

Additional irrigation match ORPT 22-227 20,000.00               

03 Grants Revenue Fund Expend Total 501,200.00             

FY25 DRAFT Special Revenue Fund Budget
TOWN OF TOWNSEND

Page 10 of 10



 
June 12, 2024 

 

Julie Goodyear 

Town Manager 

Town of Townsend 

141 Main Street 

Townsend, DE 19734 

 

Re: Proposal to Provide Engineering Design and Construction Management Services 

 2024 Road Program 

Town of Townsend 

 

Dear Ms. Goodyear: 

 

Remington and Vernick Engineers (RVE) is pleased to provide this proposal for engineering design and 

construction management services for the 2024 Town of Townsend Road Program. The program consists 

of pavement resurfacing for approximately 0.08 miles of local roads within the Town. The project will 

consist of a roadway mill, overlay, base repair, and repaving of Ginn Street.  

 

In addition to pavement resurfacing, core samples of the following roads will be obtained to determine the 

existing condition of the pavement section for future repaving projects: Brook Ramble Lane, Chestnut 

Street, Finley Street, Helen Drive, Old Orchard Lane, and Walnut Street.    

 

Scope of Work 

The following is our specific scope of work as it pertains to this project: 

 

Phase 1 – Engineering Design ($3,500) 

RVE will prepare construction plans and specifications for the project, which will include a project location 

map, applicable construction details for roadway milling, paving, and technical specifications for the 

recommended location.  RVE will also prepare a construction cost estimate based on the work outlined in 

the construction specifications and the quantities for the designated local roads. Road quantities will be 

field verified by RVE personnel for the proposed roads and the necessary adjustments will be incorporated 

into the estimate. This phase will also include Municipal Street Aid document coordination with the State 

of Delaware. 

 

Phase 2 – Road Core Sampling ($3,700) 

RVE will take a minimum of two 4” diameter core samples for each neighborhood to be included in the 

road program.  We will take a minimum of one (1) 4” diameter core sample for each Collector or Arterial 

Road included on the road program. We anticipate a two-person crew. These core samples are collected as 

a quality control measure to determine whether the roadway has adequate thickness for a mill and overlay 

program. 

 

Phase 3 – Bidding ($2,000) 

RVE will prepare bidding documents as required by Delaware rules and regulations and provide this to the 

Town.  RVE will facilitate project bidding via the PennBid online solicitation platform. This task includes 

solicitation preparation, request for information response, attendance at one (1) pre-bid meeting, bid 

opening, and review and recommendations of the bids received. RVE will respond to any bidder questions 

during the bidding period and issue an addendum as needed. A bid tabulation and letter of recommendation 

will be provided to the Town at the conclusion of the bidding process. 



 

Phase 4 – Construction Management ($1,650) 

RVE will provide contract administration services for the duration of the project construction. RVE will 

provide part-time inspection services of the Contractor’s work and will verify the quantities of the 

completed construction. We anticipate providing approximately two hours of inspection per day for a two-

week construction duration.  RVE will prepare daily inspection reports with photographs.  A final punch-

list will be compiled for the contractor to address prior to the finalization of the sitework.  RVE will perform 

the project closeout and punch-list review.  RVE will attend one (1) pre-construction meeting under this 

task and will provide construction phase engineering to ensure the work is being completed per design.  

RVE intends to hold one additional meeting one (1 total) for construction management with the Town staff 

and Contractor after the pre-construction meeting. 

 

Phase 5 – Reimbursements ($300.00) 

To conduct some of the tasks mentioned above, RVE will be reimbursed for mileage, tolls, and expenses 

for site visits, as necessary. 

 

Cost of Services  

Our total fee for this project is the Not-to-Exceed amount of $11,150.00.  The total Not-to-Exceed amount 

will not be adjusted without prior written approval from the Town for the additional cost associated with a 

specific change in the scope of work. 

 

If requested, a labor-hour breakdown can be provided for your information. A labor-hour breakdown is an 

estimate of the resources and time required to perform each task outlined in the proposal. RVE does reserve 

the right to re-allocate labor-hours between in-scope tasks, as necessary to provide the required deliverables. 

 

Exclusions 

The not-to-exceed fees quoted herein are inclusive of all-work necessary to facilitate the project scope as 

described. The following services are specifically excluded from the lump sum fees quoted herein: 

 

1. Blueprint, reproduction, express mail, deliveries, fax, and out of pocket expenses. 

2. Application fees to regulatory authorities. 

3. Construction plan generation. 

4. Field survey and detailed ADA curb ramp design. 

5. Additional rounds of bidding. 

6. Property acquisition documentation/legal description. 

7. Detailed flora, fauna, archeological, wetlands, or herpetological studies. 

8. Attendance at meetings not specifically included herein. 

9. Additional contract administration work resulting from extended construction duration. 

10. Structural and architectural design services. 

 

Upon your review and approval, please sign and date the bottom of this letter. This letter will serve as our 

notice to proceed on the project. Should you have any questions or require additional information, please 

contact our office at (302) 266-0212. 

 

Sincerely, 

REMINGTON AND VERNICK ENGINEERS 

By 

 

 



Christopher J. Fazio, P.E., C.M.E. 

Executive Vice President 

 

CJF/evo 

 

cc: Erik Gruenes, P.E., Town Engineer 

 Ray Ruczynski, Manager of Construction Inspection Services 

Sharon Marrazzo, Project Analyst 

 

 

Authorized by: 

 

 

                                                            

Julie Goodyear, Town Manager             Date 



TOWNSEND POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
661 South Street, PO Box 223, Townsend, DE 19734 

Office 302-464-1262 Dispatch 302-739-4865  

EMERGENCY 911 
 

July 9, 2024 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

I am writing to endorse, with my full support the Town of Townsend’s Major Subdivision: 

Preliminary Plan and the construction plans for the property located at 100 Karins Blvd. 

 

I have no objections or concerns as it relates to public safety regarding the plans that were 

presented to Townsend PD on behalf of the Town and this development. 

 

I appreciate your consideration and anticipated approval of this project. Please do not hesitate to 

contact me if I can be of additional assistance. 
 
 
Sincerely 

Robert J. Longo 
Robert J. Longo 

Chief of Police 

Townsend Police Department 



 

A Council – Manager Municipality 

Located on the Web at townsend.delaware.gov  

 

Planning Commission of the Town of Townsend 
141 Main Street, PO Box 223, Townsend, DE 19734 

Phone (302) 378-8082    Fax (302) 378-7099 

 

 

 

 

June 5, 2024 

 

Mayor & Council of the Town of Townsend 

141 Main St., P.O. Box 223 

Townsend, DE 19734 

 

 

RE:   Major Subdivision, Parcel #: 25-008.00-002, 100 Karins Blvd.  

 

 

To the Mayor and Town Council, 

 

 

This letter transmits the Townsend Planning Commission’s recommendations with 

regard to the request for a proposal for Major Subdivision at Parcel No. 25-008.00-

002 at 100 Karins Blvd. 

 

First State Engineering presented an updated concept review to the Planning 

Commission on May 16th, 2024.  The revised plan included 7 more off-street parking 

spots that put the total to 15 and now fulfills what is called for in our zoning.   Lastly, 

the plot of land will still need to be rezoned from commercial to R3 to move forward.   

 

 Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns.   

 

Best Regards, 

Commissioner Troy Geiger 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Chair 

Mr. Troy Geiger 

 

 

Co- Chair 

Mr. James Reyes 

 

 

Ms. Lisa Brooks 

 

 

Mr. Januarius 

Asongu 

 

Ms. Eschalla 

Clarke 

 

 
 



  

 

 

TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734 
  

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov 
Revised 2022 AMT 

1 of 3 

APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION AND/OR  

LAND DEVELOPMENT 

1. Applicant 

Name:_________________________________________________________________ 

Address: 

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: (          )              - __________ Fax: (          )              - __________ 

Email:__________________________________________________________________ 

  

2. Name of Subdivision or Development  

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

3. Owner 

Name:_________________________________________________________________ 

Address: 

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: (          )              - __________ Fax:  (          )              - __________ 

Email:__________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
SLobdell
Typewritten text
Village Properties - Townsend

SLobdell
Typewritten text
8 Carriage Lane

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Newark, DE 19711

SLobdell
Typewritten text
c/o Randy Becker

SLobdell
Typewritten text
302

SLobdell
Typewritten text
377         8846

SLobdell
Typewritten text
randybecker@theinnternationale.org

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Townsend Crossings

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Lifehouse Church

SLobdell
Typewritten text
858 Green Giant Road

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Townsend, DE 19734



  

 

 

TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734 
  

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov 
Revised 2022 AMT 

2 of 3 

4. Application Type:  Minor Land Development □              Minor Subdivision □ 

(Use Checklist Form 1)   

               Major Land Development □               Major Subdivision □ 

(Use Checklist Form 2) 

5. Property Information 

a. Property Address: 

_____________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________ 

b. Parcel ID: 

c. Total Area (AC):___________________           Number of Lots: _________________ 

Existing Zoning: _______________________________________________________ 

Present Use: __________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Proposed Use: _________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

d. Water: Public  □  On-Site □         Sewer: Public  □  On-Site  □ 

6.  Plan information: 

a. Title of Plans:_________________________________________________________ 

b. Number of Sheets:______________ Date of Plans:_______/_______/___________ 

c. Name of Project Preparer:_______________________________________________ 

Preparer Address: 

_____________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Preparer Phone:_____________________ Preparer Fax:________________________ 

Preparer Email:________________________________________________________ 

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
SLobdell
Typewritten text
X

SLobdell
Typewritten text
100 Karins Boulevard

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Townsend, DE 19734

SLobdell
Typewritten text
2500800002

SLobdell
Typewritten text
11.67 ac.

SLobdell
Typewritten text
54

SLobdell
Typewritten text
C (Commercial)

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Vacant Open Field / Wooded Area

SLobdell
Typewritten text
54 Unit Townhouse Subdivision

SLobdell
Typewritten text
X

SLobdell
Typewritten text
X

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Townsend Crossings

SLobdell
Typewritten text
3

SLobdell
Typewritten text
04              01            2024

SLobdell
Typewritten text
EDWARD COUNSELLOR, P.E.

SLobdell
Typewritten text
First State Engineering

SLobdell
Typewritten text
630 Churchmans Road, Suite 105

SLobdell
Typewritten text
Newark, DE 19734

SLobdell
Typewritten text
302-368-3184

SLobdell
Typewritten text
ecounsellor@firststateengineering.com



  

 

 

TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734 
  

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov 
Revised 2022 AMT 

3 of 3 

9. Provide Proof of Ownership in conjunction with this application. (DEED) 

 

10. Fees to be paid per the Townsend Subdivision & Land Development Fee Schedule: 

Required Fee: ___________________  Received by Town?:   No □ Yes □  

Date Received:_____/______/______Received by:__________________________________ 

 

11. Signatures 

Applicant: _____________________________  Date:____________________________ 

Print Name:____________________________  Title:____________________________ 

 

Owner:________________________________  Date:____________________________ 

Print Name:____________________________  Title:____________________________ 

 

APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

(For Town of Townsend Use Only) 

1. This Completed Application For Subdivision and/or  

Land Development Form      ____________ 

2. Form 1 / Form 2 Checklist      ____________ 

3. Copy of Property Deed(s)       ____________ 

4. Application Fee        ____________ 

5. Subdivision and/or Land Development Plans (10 copies)  ____________ 

6. 2 Copies of studies/reports      ____________ 

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov


 

  

 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734   

 

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov  
1 of 5 

Revised 2022 AMT 

MAJOR SUBDIVISION OR  

LAND DEVELOPMENT CHECKLIST 

 

Note: This checklist is for the purpose of review only. It is the applicant’s responsibility to 

comply with the Town’s ordinance. Incomplete application will be returned. The official review 

begins only with a complete application submission. 

A. Completed Subdivision and/or Land Development Application  _______ 

B. 10 copies of subdivision and/or land development plans   _______ 

C. Name of the subdivision or development. 

___________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________  

D. Name and address of the owner and applicant. 

___________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________  

___________________________________________________  

E. Name and address of the engineer or surveyor who prepared the plan. 

___________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________  

___________________________________________________  

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
Townsend Crossings

slobdell
Typewritten text
Village Properties - Townsend, LLC (c/o Randy Becker)

slobdell
Typewritten text
8 Carraige Lane

slobdell
Typewritten text
Newark, DE 19702

slobdell
Typewritten text
First State Engineering (c/o Ed Counsellor, P.E.)630 Churchmans Road, Suite 105Newark, DE 19702



 

  

 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734   

 

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov  
2 of 5 

Revised 2022 AMT 

 

F. 2 copies of studies/reports 

___________________________________________________  _______ 

___________________________________________________  _______ 

___________________________________________________  _______ 

___________________________________________________  _______ 

G. Electronic copies of Items A, B & C above.     _______ 

H. Single check for Filing Fee. Initial Engineering and Plan Review Escrow _______ 

a. Check Number        _______ 

b. Check Amount        _______ 

c. Date Deposited        _______ 

I. Per Chapter 24, Appendices of the Zoning and Unified Development Code, of the 

Townsend Municipal Code, submission for major subdivision or land development must 

contain the following information (when applicable): 

         

  YES NO NA 

1.  Name of the subdivision or development.    

2.  Name and address of the owner and applicant.    

3.  Name and address of the engineer or surveyor who prepared the 

plan. 

   

4.  Written and graphic scale, not exceeding 1" = 50'.    

5.  Sheet size of either 24" x 36" or 24" x 42".    

6.  North arrow.    

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X



 

  

 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734   

 

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov  
3 of 5 

Revised 2022 AMT 

7.  Plan legend.    

8.  Date of the original plan and all subsequent revision dates.    

9.  Sheet number, if multiple sheets are used.    

  YES NO NA 

10.  A location map with a scale of no less than 1" = 500' indicating 

adjacent streets. 

   

11.  Certification of plan accuracy by engineer/surveyor.    

12.  Certification of ownership.    

13.  Certification of plan approval.    

14.  Tax parcel numbers.    

15.  Zoning district of the subject tract.    

16.  Source of title.    

17.  Survey datum and local benchmark.    

18.  Total site gross and net acreage.    

19.  Name of water supplier and the note "Water supply is subject to 

the State Department of Natural Resources and Environmental 

Control and the Delaware Department of Health." 

   

20.  Sanitary sewage disposal method.    

21.  Number of existing and proposed lots or dwelling units.    

22.  Lot numbers for all existing and proposed lots.    

23.  Existing and proposed nonresidential gross floor area.    

24.  Location of existing and proposed building and structures.    

25.  The name, right-of-way width and cartway width of all adjoining 

streets. 

   

26.  Tie-in distances from subject property to the nearest street 

intersection. 

   

27.  Location of front, side, and rear yard setbacks and all required 

buffer yards. 

   

28.  Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed sidewalks.    

29.  Calculation of required off-street loading areas.    

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X



 

  

 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734   

 

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov  
4 of 5 

Revised 2022 AMT 

30.  Location of all existing and proposed site accesses and driveways     

31.  Location and design of all proposed off-street parking areas, 

indicating parking spaces and access aisle dimensions and 

directional arrows indicating proposed traffic circulation patterns.   

   

32.  Existing and proposed building coverage.    

33.  Existing and proposed impervious coverage.    

34.  Name and address, tax parcel numbers and zoning of all adjoining 

property owners. 

   

  YES NO NA 

35.  Location of any water bodies and watercourses.    

36.  Location of any floodplains, including FEMA map panel number.    

37.  Location of any wetlands areas delineated during a time of 

seasonal high ground water tables. If no wetlands present on site, 

a letter of nonexistence for wetlands is required. 

   

38.  Location and identification of any historic structures.    

39.  Location of all significant natural or manmade structures.    

40.  Existing and proposed deed restrictions, easements or protective 

covenants. 

   

41.  Grading plan indicating existing contours (at two-foot intervals), 

proposed grading, spot elevations and finished floor elevations and 

top and bottom of wall elevations for any retaining walls over two 

feet. 

   

42.  Limit of existing tree masses and location, size and species of all 

individual trees over six-inch caliper.  

   

43.  A limit of disturbance line.    

44.  A soil erosion and sediment control plan.    

45.  Stormwater management plan.    

46.  Solid waste management plan.    

47.  Landscape plan.    

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CONST. PLAN REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)



 

  

 
TOWN OF TOWNSEND 

 141 Main Street  

 Townsend, DE 19734   

 

P.O. Box 223 · 141 Main Street · Townsend, DE  19734 
Phone (302) 378-8082 · Fax: (302) 378-7099 · www.townsend.delaware.gov  · 

townhall@townsend.delaware.gov  
5 of 5 

Revised 2022 AMT 

48.  A listing of all existing nonconforming buildings, uses or 

structures. 

   

49.  Digital copies of the submitted application packet. Once the plan 

has final approval, digital copies in CAD or other applicable 

engineering software must be submitted to the Town Clerk and the 

Town Engineer. 

   

50.  A traffic impact study, including mitigation measures if deemed 

necessary by the study.  

   

51.  The name, right-of-way width, cartway width, profiles, cross 

sections and grading for all proposed streets. 

   

52.  Type, location, size, material of construction, slope and profiles 

for all proposed utilities. 

   

53.  Location, size, material of construction slope and profiles for all 

proposed storm sewers. 

   

54.  Location, grade elevation and invert elevation for all catch basins, 

inlets and manholes. 

   

55.  Location of all proposed fire hydrants.    

56.  Phasing lines for phased developments.    

57.  Sidewalk locations, pedestrian ways, bikeways, walkways.    

58. . Proposed passive and active recreation areas.    

59.  Listing of any required variances.    

60.  Wetland report.    

61.  Floodplain study.    

62.  Construction details for all proposed improvements. (UDC 2002, 

§2003) 

   

63.  Final checklist requirements    

64.  DelDOT Pipe cover and lateral spreadsheet    

 

http://www.townsend.delaware.gov/
mailto:townhall@townsend.delaware.gov
slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (CP REVIEW)

slobdell
Typewritten text
X (PRELIMINARY)

slobdell
Typewritten text
x



KA
RI

N
S

BO
U

LE
VA

RD
DE

DI
CA

TE
D 

TO
 P

U
BL

IC
 U

SE
)

(T
O

W
N

 O
F 

TO
W

N
SE

N
D 

M
AI

N
TA

IN
ED

)
(8

0'
 R

.O
.W

.)

JESSIE LANE
DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)

(TOWN OF TOWNSEND MAINTAINED)
(50' R.O.W.)

THATCHER WAY
DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)

(TOWN OF TOWNSEND MAINTAINED)
(50' R.O.W.)

LOT 1
LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4

LOT 5
LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11
LOT 12

LOT 13
LOT 14

LO
T 15

LO
T 16

LO
T 17

LO
T 18

LOT 19LOT 20LOT 21LOT 22
LOT 23

LOT 24
LOT 25

LOT 26LOT 27
LOT 28LOT 29

LOT 30LOT 31LOT 32
LOT 33LOT 34

LOT 35LOT 36LOT 37
LOT 38

LOT 48
LOT 47LOT 46

LOT 45LOT 44LOT 43
LOT 42

LOT 41

LOT 54 LOT 53 LOT 52 LOT 51 LOT 50 LOT 49

OPEN SPACE

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
4

n/
f J

O
HN

SO
N

 M
EN

GE
 &

 R
AC

HE
L 

AT
EN

GA
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

30
21

70
01

07
70

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
5

n/
f J

EN
EA

 D
. H

AL
L

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
60

91
80

08
91

10
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
6

n/
f R

ID
GE

 B
AM

FO
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

30
81

00
05

34
24

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
7

n/
f L

AU
RA

 B
. &

 D
AV

ID
 JO

N
ES

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
70

11
70

05
17

9
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
8

n/
f J

O
HN

 R
. P

RA
TT

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
70

22
20

01
68

17
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PARCEL ID No. 2500800139
n/f GRAY STREET PROPERTIES, LLC

MICROFILM: 200312310169027
ZONE: R1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 1
40

11
00

06
0

n/
f J

O
AN

N
 M

. &
 M

IC
HA

EL
 A

. Q
U

IL
LE

N

DE
ED

 B
O

O
K/

PA
GE

: 7
47

 / 
11

9

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
3

n/
f T

O
W

N
 O

F 
TO

W
N

SE
N

D
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

11
01

80
12

00
92

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
1

n/
f  

LI
FE

HO
U

SE
 C

HU
RC

H
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
01

60
33

00
01

45
90

ZO
N

E:
 C

11

4

SUMMIT BRIDGE ROAD
(NCCR 014)

(DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)
(DELDOT MAINTAINED)

(100' R.O.W.)

0+00 1+00 2+00

3+00

4+00

5+
00

5+
83

10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 15+90

50
'

9'

18'

9'

22
'

50
'

PROPOSED SWM POND LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

LOT 40
LOT 39

NEW CASTLE COUNTY, DELAWARE

S.E.L.

E.P.C.

S.E.L.

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED CURB

PROPOSED PAVEMENT
CROSS SECTION

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

EXISTING CURB

PROPOSED CENTER LINE

EXISTING LINE STRIPING

PROPOSED LINE STRIPING

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

PROPOSED BUILDING

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR

EXISTING INLET

PROPOSED INLET

EXISTING STORM PIPE

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

EXISTING DRAINAGE M.H.

PROPOSED F.E.S.

SOIL BORING LOCATIONS

EXISTING SANITARY M.H.

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SAN. FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED SANITARY M.H.

SOIL TYPE BOUNDARY LINE

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CENTER LINE

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

MONUMENT/PIPE FOUND

MONUMENT TO BE SET

EXISTING WATER MAIN

PROPOSED WATER MAIN

EXISTING GAS MAIN

PROPOSED GAS MAIN

EX./PROP. FIRE HYDRANT

EX./PROP. GATE VALVE

EX. EDGE OF PAVEMENT

LEGEND:

PROPOSED DRAINAGE M.H.

PRELIMINARY MAJOR SUBDIVISION PLAN
W/ REZONING

FOR

Townsend Crossings
New Castle Hundred, Town of Townsend

New Castle County, Delaware

 THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN IS TO SUBDIVIDE THIS 11.67 ± ACRE SITE INTO
54 TOWNHOOUSE LOTS ALONG WITH THE IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED
WITHIN.

SITE PLAN
Scale: 1"=50'

1.25 Ac.± (54,485 S.F.)
6.50 Ac.± (283,226 S.F.)

SHEET LIST TABLE
SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE

RP1 COVER SHEET

- Ac.± (- S.F.)

1. ENTRANCE ONTO EXISTING STATE MAINTAINED ROADS SHALL CONFORM TO THE STATE OF DELAWARE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS
AND SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THEIR APPROVAL.

2. ALL RIGHTS-OF-WAY ARE INTENDED FOR DEDICATION TO PUBLIC USE.

3. A 20' WIDE DRAINAGE EASEMENT, 10' ON EACH SIDE OF THE CENTERLINE OF THE PIPE, SHALL BE CREATED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE OR UNLESS OTHERWISE
INDICATED, WHERE A STORM SEWER  EXISTS OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF THE DEDICATED HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY. A 40' WIDE  DRAINAGE EASEMENT, 20'
ON EACH SIDE OF THE CENTERLINE OF THE PIPE, SHALL BE CREATED,  WHEREVER POSSIBLE OR UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, WHERE A SANITARY SEWER
EXISTS OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF THE DEDICATED HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY.

4. ALL PRIVATE COMMON AREAS, PRIVATE OPEN AREAS, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES, PARKING BAYS, ACCESS WAYS, PARKING AREAS, STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES, LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS, AND LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE KEPT IN GOOD REPAIR AND MAINTAINED IN A SAFE AND SANITARY
CONDITION ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 27 OF THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE.

5. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION USED IN CONNECTION WITH THE DESIGN OF THIS PLAN WAS GENERATED BY FIELD SURVEY BY MERESTONE CONSULTANTS  IN
SEPT 2023. NO CHANGE OF GRADES OR CONTOURS HAS OCCURRED SINCE.

6. WATER SUPPLY:  WATER SUPPLY WILL BE THROUGH  ARTESIAN WATER AND IS SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE DELAWARE STATE DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL AND THE DELAWARE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH.

7. SEWERAGE IS SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS. AT THE TIME OF APPROVAL OF THIS PLAN, SEWER
CAPACITY EXISTED TO ACCOMMODATE THE ANTICIPATED FLOWS GENERATED BY THIS ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT. NEW CASTLE COUNTY HAS COMMITTED
TO PROVIDE SEWER SERVICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAND DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT. THE OWNER OF THIS
PROPERTY, HIS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR EXTENDING SEWER SERVICE TO EACH LOT SHOWN ON OR CREATED BY THIS PLAN.

8. FLOODPLAIN:  PER THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 10003C0145K, DATED JANUARY 22, 2020, PANEL 145
OF 475 AND MAP 10003C0145K  THERE IS NOT A 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN ON THIS SITE.

9. WRPA:  BASED ON THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY WATER RESOURCE AGENCY WATER RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA MAPS DATED MARCH 2022, NO PORTION OF
THIS SITE FALLS WITH THE WRPA RECHARGE AREA.

10. WETLANDS:  THIS SITE WAS EVALUATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN THE 1987 CORPS OF ENGINEERS WETLAND DELINEATION
MANUAL. (TECHNICAL REPORT Y-87-1), AND SUBSEQUENT PUBLIC NOTICES, TO IDENTIFY THE PRESENCE OF JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS, AND NO
WETLANDS WERE FOUND TO EXIST ON THE SITE.

11. CRITICAL NATURAL AREAS:  THIS SITE DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A CRITICAL NATURAL AREA (CNA).

12. DEED RESTRICTIONS:  THIS SITE CONTAINS NO DEED RESTRICTIONS WHICH HAVE BEEN IMPOSED FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY.

13. DEBRIS DISPOSAL:  NO DEBRIS WILL BE BURIED ON THIS SITE.

14. IMPACT FEE: THIS PLAN IS SUBJECT TO THE IMPACT FEE PROVISIONS DETAILED IN THE  TOWN  CODE, AS MAY BE  AMENDED BY TOWNSEND COUNCIL.

15. LANDSCAPE PLAN: A LANDSCAPE PLAN, PREPARED BY - LAST DATED - OR AS AMENDED AND APPROVED IN WRITING BY THE  DEPARTMENT OF LAND USE, IS
HEREBY CONSIDERED A PART OF THE RECORD PLAN.

16. SIDEWALKS: UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON THE PLAN, SIDEWALKS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN THE LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN PRIOR TO THE
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR THE BUILDINGS IN FRONT OF WHICH THEY ARE SHOWN. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE FIVE (5) FEET IN WIDTH AND
CONSTRUCTED OF PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE.

17. MAINTENANCE OF COMMON FACILITIES: FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE COMMON FACILITIES INCLUDING THE OPEN SPACE AREAS AND THE STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES, SHOWN ON THE PLAN, SEE THE MAINTENANCE DECLARATION DATED - AND OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF
DEEDS IN AND FOR NEW CASTLE COUNTY, STATE OF DELAWARE, INSTRUMENT NO. -.

18. UTILITY EASEMENTS:  A 6' FOOT WIDE EASEMENT ON EACH SIDE OF EACH SIDE AND REAR LOT LINE SHOWN ON THE PLAN, AND ON EACH SIDE AND REAR
LOT LINE SUBSEQUENTLY ESTABLISHED WITHIN THE AREA SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS HEREBY DEDICATED TO BE AVAILABLE FOR ANY UTILITY USE, PROVIDED
THAT WHERE ANY LOT LINE IS ELIMINATED THE EASEMENT ALONG SAID LOT  LINE SHALL BE EXTINGUISHED EXCEPT AS TO UTILITIES THEN EXISTING IN SAID
EASEMENT.

19. SUBDIVISION STREETS:
a. ALL ENTRANCES SHALL CONFORM TO THE STATE OF DELAWARE DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS STANDARDS AND SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THEIR APPROVAL.
b. ALL RIGHTS-OF-WAY ARE INTENDED FOR DEDICATION TO PUBLIC USE.
c. SUBDIVISION STREETS CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE TO BE

MAINTAINED BY THE TOWN OF TOWNSEND FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE STREETS TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE TOWN. THE TOWN ASSUMES NO
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN THE DEDICATED STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY UNTIL THE STREETS HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN.

20. CONSERVATION EASEMENT: ANY AREA DESIGNATED FOR PROTECTION AS A NATURAL RESOURCE PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 10 OF THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE IS HEREBY PROTECTED BY A CONSERVATION EASEMENT THAT SHALL RUN IN PERPETUITY FOR THE BENEFIT OF NEW CASTLE
COUNTY. ANY AREA ON THIS PLAN DELINEATED AS A CONSERVATION EASEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN ITS NATURAL STATE.

21. COMMUNITY POSTAL BOXES: POSTAL BOXES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE UNITED STATES POSTAL
SERVICE. THE PROPERTY ADDRESSES ARE AS ASSIGNED BY NEW CASTLE COUNTY GIS SERVICES.

22. TRAFFIC STUDY:  A TRAFFIC STUDY IS NOT REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT.

23. DRAINAGE, EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL, AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DELAWARE SEDIMENT
AND STORMWATER REGULATIONS AND THE DNREC DRAINAGE CODE.

24. ALL FIRE LANES, FIRE HYDRANTS, SPRINKLER AND STANDPIPE CONNECTIONS AND FIRE EXISTS SHALL BE MARKED AND/OR PROTECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE DELAWARE STATE FIRE PROTECTION REGULATIONS, PART V, SECTION 5. DATED 1997 OR AS LATER AMENDED.

25. THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY FOR MAINTENANCE FOR DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS; THE MAINTENANCE OF PIPES AND STRUCTURES LOCATED
IN DRAINAGE EASEMENT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF MAINTENANCE CORPORATION, AND THE LAND THAT THE DRAINAGE EASEMENT ENCOMPASSES IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE HOME OWNER.

26. THE DEVELOPER SHALL PAY FUNDS TO NEW CASTLE COUNTY  FOR THE PURPOSE OF  RESIDENTIAL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY MAINTENANCE
AND INSPECTIONS  PURSUANT TO SECTION 40.27.230 OF THE COUNTY CODE. THE FUNDS SHALL BE USED FOR THE COST ASSOCIATED WITH INSPECTIONS
AND MAINTENANCE. AN AMOUNT OF $- SHALL BE FUNDED UPON ISSUANCE OF SEVENTY-FIVE (75) PERCENT OF THE BUILDING PERMITS, THE DEPARTMENT
SHALL WITHHOLD THE ISSUANCE OF ANY ADDITIONAL BUILDING PERMITS UNTIL THE DEPARTMENT IS FURNISHED WITH SATISFACTORY PROOF THAT THE
FUNDS HAVE BEEN PAID TO NEW CASTLE COUNTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENT.

27. PURSUANT TO UDC 40.27.220 OF THE UDC, THE DEVELOPER SHALL PLACE FUNDS IN AN INTEREST BEARING ESCROW ACCOUNT EQUIVALENT TO THE COST
OF MAINTAINING THE PRIVATE OPEN SPACE, PRIVATE ALLEYS, AND COMMON FACILITIES FOR A TWO (2) YEAR PERIOD. THE AMOUNT SHALL BE $- ($- PER
LOT * - LOTS * 2 YEARS) AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN OR SUBSEQUENT PLANS.

28. DEVELOPER SHALL BE GRANTED ACCESS TO INDIVIDUAL LOTS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR AFTER THE LOT HAS BEEN SOLD FOR PURPOSES OF
COMPLETING THE OVERALL SITE DRAINAGE AND/OR LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS.

PROP. LIMIT OF DISTRUBANCE

NOTES:

LOCATION MAP
Scale: n.t.s

WRPA RECHARGE AREA LINE

15/20 FT.
0 & 6 FT.

PROVIDED

3.67 Ac.± (160,069 S.F.)

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

PROJECT:

DATE:

TITLE

DESIGNED BY:

SHEET NUMBER

FOR

SITUATED IN

PLAN NOTATION
ONLY THOSE PLANS WHICH CONTAIN AN IMPRESSED SEAL OR A RED
INK SEAL OF THE RESPONSIBLE PROFESSIONAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED
VALID. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY PREPARED FOR THE
OWNER DESIGNATED HEREON. ANY MODIFICATION, REVISION,
DUPLICATION OR USE WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF FIRST
STATE ENGINEERING IS PROHIBITED. RELIANCE ON THIS PLAN FOR
ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN THAT WHICH IS INTENDED SHALL BE AT
THE SOLE DISCRETION AND LIABILITY OF THE APPLICABLE PARTY.

PLAN NOTES

CHECKED BY:

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

COVER SHEET

VILLAGE PROPERTIES - TOWNSEND, LLC

TOWNSEND CROSSINGS

PARCEL ID. NO. 2500800002

2402NCC

04/01/2024

1" = 50'

RP1

PROPOSED LOT NUMBER

PROPOSED PROPERTY ADDRESS

0.65 Ac.± (28,195 S.F.)
0.28 Ac.± (12,221 S.F.)
0.61 Ac.± (26,719 S.F.)

2.74 Ac.± (119,299 S.F.)

CENTERLINE SWALE RIGHT

CENTERLINE SWALE LEFT

1.20 Ac.± (52,164 S.F.)

- -1

DelDOT 's Record Plan General Notes:
1. NO LANDSCAPING SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN R/W UNLESS THE PLANS ARE COMPLIANT WITH SECTION 3.7 OF THE DEVELOPMENT COORDINATION MANUAL (DCM).

2. ALL ENTRANCES SHALL CONFORM TO THE DELAWARE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION'S (DELDOT'S) CURRENT DEVELOPMENT COORDINATION MANUAL (DCM) AND
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ITS APPROVAL.

3. SHRUBBERY, PLANTINGS, SIGNS AND/OR OTHER VISUAL BARRIERS THAT COULD OBSTRUCT THE SIGHT DISTANCE OF A DRIVER PREPARING TO ENTER THE ROADWAY ARE
PROHIBITED WITHIN THE DEFINED DEPARTURE SIGHT TRIANGLE AREA ESTABLISHED ON THIS PLAN. IF THE ESTABLISHED DEPARTURE SIGHT TRIANGLE AREA IS OUTSIDE THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY OR PROJECTS ONTO AN ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNER'S LAND, A SIGHT EASEMENT SHOULD BE ESTABLISHED AND RECORDED WITH ALL AFFECTED
PROPERTY OWNERS TO MAINTAIN THE REQUIRED SIGHT DISTANCE.

4. UPON COMPLETION OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SIDEWALK OR SHARED-USE PATH ACROSS THIS PROJECT'S FRONTAGE AND PHYSICAL CONNECTION TO ADJACENT
EXISTING FACILITIES, THE DEVELOPER, THE PROPERTY OWNERS OR BOTH ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO REMOVE ANY EXISTING ROAD TIE-IN
CONNECTIONS LOCATED ALONG ADJACENT PROPERTIES, AND RESTORE THE AREA TO GRASS.  SUCH ACTIONS SHALL BE COMPLETED AT DELDOT'S DISCRETION, AND IN
CONFORMANCE WITH DELDOT'S “SHARED-USE PATH AND/OR SIDEWALK TERMINATION POLICY”.

5. SUBDIVISION STREETS CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC USE SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE
STATE OF DELAWARE FOLLOWING THE COMPLETION OF THE STREETS BY THE DEVELOPER TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE TOWN. THE TOWN ASSUMES NO MAINTENANCE
RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN THE DEDICATED STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY UNTIL THE STREETS HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN.

6. SUBDIVISION STREETS CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE TOWN
OF TOWNSEND FOLLOWING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE .STREETS. THE TOWN ASSUMES NO MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN THE DEDICATED STREET
RIGHT-OF-WAY UNTIL THE STREETS HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY TOWN.

7. THE SIDEWALK AND SHARED-USE PATH SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DEVELOPER, THE PROPERTY OWNERS OR BOTH WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION. THE STATE OF
DELAWARE ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FUTURE MAINTENANCE OF THE SIDEWALK AND/OR SHARED-USE PATH.

8. ALL LOTS SHALL HAVE ACCESS FROM THE INTERNAL SUBDIVISION STREET.

9. DRIVEWAYS WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO BE PLACED AT CATCH BASIN LOCATIONS.

10. LOTS WILL BE PERMITTED TO HAVE ACCESS POINTS THAT COMPLY WITH THE DEVELOPMENT COORDINATION MANUAL (DCM) SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 1
AND LIMITATIONS ON NUMBER OF ACCESS POINTS ESTABLISHED IN DCM CHAPTER 7. HORSESHOE DRIVEWAYS AND SECONDARY ENTRANCES REQUIRE ADDITIONAL
DELDOT REVIEW AND SEPARATE PERMITTING, RESTRICTIONS AS DESCRIBED IN THE DCM CHAPTER 7 MAY PROHIBIT SOME SECONDARY ENTRANCE REQUESTS FROM BEING
GRANTED.

11. TO MINIMIZE RUTTING AND EROSION OF THE ROADSIDE DUE TO ON-STREET PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND BUILDING LAYOUTS MUST BE CONFIGURED TO ALLOW FOR
VEHICLES TO BE STORED IN THE DRIVEWAY BEYOND THE RIGHT-OF-WAY, WITHOUT INTERFERING WITH SIDEWALK ACCESS AND CLEARANCE.

12. THE DEVELOPER SHALL BE REQUIRED TO FURNISH AND PLACE RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTS ON THE DEDICATED SUBDIVISION STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 3.2.4.1 OF THE DEVELOPMENT COORDINATION MANUAL, AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LAND USE AGENCY. RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTS SHALL BE
PLACED ALONG THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES, AT A MINIMUM ON ONE SIDE OF THE STREET AT EVERY CHANGE IN HORIZONTAL ALIGNMENT TO PROVIDE A PERMANENT
REFERENCE FOR THE RE-ESTABLISHING THE CENTERLINE AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE.

PROPOSED EASEMENT

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED - 54 TOWNHOMES

11.67 Ac.± (508,345 S.F.) 

REQUIRED FOR TOWNHOUSE = 2 SPACES/2-3 BEDROOM
2 SPACES/DU X 54 LOTS = 108 SPACES REQUIRED
PROVIDED 2.0 SPACES/DRIVEWAY & GARAGE PER UNIT
3.0 SPACES/DU X 162 LOTS = 468 SPACES PROVIDED

ADDITIONAL 1 SPACE PER 5 UNITS FOR GUESTS

(5/54) = 11 GUEST SPACES REQUIRED
15 GUEST SPACES PROVIDED.

630 CHURCHMANS ROAD, SUITE 105, NEWARK, DE 19702
WWW.FIRSTSTATEENGINEERING.COM

PHONE: (302) 368-3184

SITE AREA DISTRIBUTIONS:17.

NUMBER OF LOTS:

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:3.

ZONING DISTRICT:6.

TAX MAP:5. 2500800002

EXISTING  - 1

9.

APPLICANT:2.

SOURCE OF TITLE: 20160330 0014590
DATUM DELAWARE STATE PLANE NAD83, NAVD 88

7.

BENCHMARK -
8.

ELEV. = -

20.

19.

                 PROPOSED: -

                 PROPOSED: -

H

Y D

H

Y D

LOT REGULATIONS:18.

AREA IN R.O.W.:
OPEN SPACE:

MONUMENTATION:    EXISTING: -

FIRE HYDRANTS:     EXISTING: 0

EXISTING: C (COMMERCIAL)
PROPOSED: R-3 (RESIDENTIAL)

OPEN FIELDEXISTING USE:

10.

11.67 Ac.± (508,345 S.F.) GROSS SITE AREA:
12. PROPOSED USE:
11.

RESIDENTIAL 

SITE ADDRESS4.

13.

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT AREAS:

R-3 (RESIDENTIAL)

IMPERVIOUS AREAS:

MINIMUM LOT SIZE:
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 20 FT.

STREET YARD SETBACK: 15/20 FT.
SIDE YARD SETBACK: 0 FT. / 12 FT END UNIT

2,200 SF

REAR YARD SETBACK: 20 FT.

23 FT.
2,530 SF

REQ'D

BUILDING HEIGHT: 40 FT. < 40 FT.
20 FT.

LOT AREA:

ROADWAY:
SIDEWALK:
DRIVEWAY:

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS:
HOUSE AREA 

(PONDS, MAINTENANCE AND OUTFALL)

TOTAL AREA:

21. PARKING:

SITE DATA:
OWNER OF RECORD:1.

VILLAGE PROPERTIES - TOWNSEND, LLC
C/O RANDY BECKER
8 CARRIAGE LANE
NEWARK, DE 19711
(302) 377-8846

100 KARINS BOULEVARD
TOWNSEND, DE 19734

FIRST STATE ENGINEERING
630 CHURCHMANS ROAD, SUITE 105
NEWARK, DE 19702
(302) 368-3184

R3 - RESIDENTIAL
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED:

RP2 RECORD PLAN
RP3 TABLES & DETAILS

LIFEHOUSE CHURCH
858 GREEN GIANT ROAD
TOWNSEND, DE 19734

WATER SUPPLY:14. ARTESIAN WATER COMPANY.   WATER  SUPPLY IS
SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL AND THE DELAWARE
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH.

SANITARY SEWER:15. NEW CASTLE COUNTY.  SEWERAGE IS SUBJECT TO THE
APPROVAL OF THE NEW CASTLE COUNTY DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC WORKS.

SEWER FLOWS:16. SF ATTACHED:  54 UNITS @250 GPD = 13,500 GPD
PEAK FLOW =  4 * 13,500 GPD = 54,000 GPD

I, EDWARD P. COUNSELLOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN THE
STATE OF DELAWARE AND THAT ALL OF THE INFORMATION ON THIS PLAN IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE
ACCURACY REQUIRED BY ACCEPTED SURVEYING STANDARDS AND PRACTICES, AND IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN OF TOWNSEND.

Certification of Accuracy:

EDWARD P. COUNSELLOR, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 23772                                                                  DATE-----------------------                                                                                                                                                    DATE

Certificate of Ownership:
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY WHICH IS SUBJECT OF
THIS PLAN AND THAT THE LAND USE ACTION PROPOSED BY THIS PLAN IS MADE AT MY DIRECTION AND
THAT I AUTHORIZE THIS PLAN TO BE RECORDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF THE
TOWN OF TOWNSEND.

APPROVED  _____________  BY  _____________________________

FOR MAYOR & COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF TOWNSEND

DATE MAYOR 

Certification of Approvals:

RECORDED  _____________________  IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF DEEDS IN AND

FOR NEW CASTLE COUNTY, STATE OF DELAWARE, IN INSTRUMENT NO. _____________________

DATE

MINIMUM LOT DEPTH: 110 FT. 110 FT.

APPOQUINIMINK HUNDRED
TOWN OF TOWNSEND

DELAWARE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 23772

DATE

SITE



56

58

KA
RI

N
S

BO
U

LE
VA

RD
DE

DI
CA

TE
D 

TO
 P

U
BL

IC
 U

SE
)

(T
O

W
N

 O
F 

TO
W

N
SE

N
D 

M
AI

N
TA

IN
ED

)
(8

0'
 R

.O
.W

.)

JESSIE LANE
DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)

(TOWN OF TOWNSEND MAINTAINED)
(50' R.O.W.)

THATCHER WAY
DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)

(TOWN OF TOWNSEND MAINTAINED)
(50' R.O.W.)

57

60

56

58

62
64

50

52

5456

50

60

46
48

52

54

56

58

0 01010 2020 3030 4040

50 22 44 66 88 1212 1414 1616 1818 2222 2424 2626 2828 3232 3434 3636 3838 4242 444446 4646

46464648

52

5456

OPEN SPACE

264,584 SF

6.07 AC

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
4

n/
f J

O
HN

SO
N

 M
EN

GE
 &

 R
AC

HE
L 

AT
EN

GA
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

30
21

70
01

07
70

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
5

n/
f J

EN
EA

 D
. H

AL
L

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
60

91
80

08
91

10
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
6

n/
f R

ID
GE

 B
AM

FO
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

30
81

00
05

34
24

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
7

n/
f L

AU
RA

 B
. &

 D
AV

ID
 JO

N
ES

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
70

11
70

05
17

9
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
8

n/
f J

O
HN

 R
. P

RA
TT

M
IC

RO
FI

LM
: 2

00
70

22
20

01
68

17
ZO

N
E:

 R
1A

PARCEL ID No. 2500800139
n/f GRAY STREET PROPERTIES, LLC

MICROFILM: 200312310169027
ZONE: R1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 1
40

11
00

06
0

n/
f J

O
AN

N
 M

. &
 M

IC
HA

EL
 A

. Q
U

IL
LE

N

DE
ED

 B
O

O
K/

PA
GE

: 7
47

 / 
11

9

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
3

n/
f T

O
W

N
 O

F 
TO

W
N

SE
N

D
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
02

11
01

80
12

00
92

ZO
N

E:
 R

1A

PA
RC

EL
 ID

 N
o.

 2
50

08
00

00
1

n/
f  

LI
FE

HO
U

SE
 C

HU
RC

H
M

IC
RO

FI
LM

: 2
01

60
33

00
01

45
90

ZO
N

E:
 C

11

4

SUMMIT BRIDGE ROAD
(NCCR 014)

(DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE)
(DELDOT MAINTAINED)

(100' R.O.W.)

0+00 1+00 2+00

3+00

4+00

5+
00

5+
83

10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 15+90

50
'

9'

18'

9'

22
'

50
'

PROPOSED SWM POND LOCATION

LO
T 

1
4,

73
0 

SF
0.

11
 A

C

LO
T 

2
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

3
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

4
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

5
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

6
2,

52
9 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

7
5,

05
3 

SF
0.

12
 A

C

LO
T 

54
4,

73
0 

SF
0.

11
 A

C

LO
T 

53
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

52
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

51
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

50
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

49
3,

18
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

48
5,

05
3 

SF
0.

12
 A

C

LO
T 

47
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

46
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

45
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

44
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

43
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

42
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

41
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LOT 8

5,098 SF

0.12 AC

LOT 9

2,534 SF

0.06 AC

LOT 10

4,212 SF

0.10 AC

LOT 11
4,503 SF

0.10 AC

LOT 12
2,530 SF

0.06 AC

LOT 13
2,530 SF

0.06 AC

LOT 14
3,917 SF

0.09 AC

LOT 15
4,865 SF
0.11 AC

LOT 16
2,532 SF
0.06 AC

LOT 17
2,530 SF
0.06 AC

LOT 18
4,596 SF
0.11 AC

LO
T 

19
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

20
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

21
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

22
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

23
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

24
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

25
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

26
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

27
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

28
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

29
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

30
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

31
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

32
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

33
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

34
3,

19
0 

SF
0.

07
 A

C

LO
T 

35
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

36
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

37
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

38
4,

73
0 

SF
0.

11
 A

C
OPEN SPACE

18,375 SF

0.42 AC

43.00'

43.00'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

C14

4.33'

11
0.

00
'

C79

C16

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 1
09

.9
2'

C17

43.00' 23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

C54
9.33'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

41.87'

11
0.

00
'

22.84'
C60

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
 4

6.
82

'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

29.00'

29.00'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

N 78°08'01" E
 110.59'

C19

C30

C31

N 87°40'20" E 110.00'

C32

C43

C45

15.17'

110.00'

23.00'

110.00'

8.43'

C4
6

C6
6

N 73°24'31" W 110.00'

S 58°06'23" E 110.33'

C4
8

5.82'

110.00'

5.82'

23
.0

0'

23
.0

0'

18
.0

0'

C49

85.00'

43
.0

0'

110.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

29.00'
11

0.
00

'

29.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

29.00'

11
0.

00
'

29.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

23.00'

23.00'

43.00'

43.00'

11
0.

00
'

N 58°06'23" W 476.99'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 1
23

.2
6'

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
 1

10
.0

0'

S 
48

°0
3'

24
" W

 1
08

.6
7'

C21

N 
60

°5
0'

51
" E

 1
10

.0
0'

C5
9

14.40'

27
.0

0'

S 58°06'23" E
42.00'

S 31°53'37" W 27.00'

32.00'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 5
0.

00
'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 1
10

.0
0'

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
 1

10
.0

0'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 1
19

.1
5'

S 
12

°0
1'

37
" W

16
.9

9'

S 58°06'23" E 629.62'

S 40°45'21" E 186.07'

N
 2

9°
17

'3
9"

 E
 6

73
.2

1'

N 54°31'44" W 281.02'

C6
1

S 58°06'23" E 110.33'

C6
4

C4
4

8.43'

23.00'

15.17'
S 80°10'44" E 110.07'

C40

C38110.00'

C35

C34

C20

C9
6

C4
7

C25

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

 1
08

.4
4'

C5
2

43.00' 23.00'

S 58°06'23" E  522.00'

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
  6

8.
91

'

S 58°06'23" E  137.16' C15

C41

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
  1

21
5.

16
'

C56

LO
T 

40
2,

53
0 

SF
0.

06
 A

C

LO
T 

39
4,

72
9 

SF
0.

11
 A

C

23.00'

11
0.

00
'

23.00'

C5
5

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

  1
21

5.
16

'

C57

C53

N 9°49'16" E  1215.16'

C24

43.00'

S 
31

°5
3'

37
" W

  3
05

.5
3'

C58
38.00'

C6
2

S 58°06'23" E  134.66'

S 58°06'23" E  164.00'

S 58°06'23" E  280.87'

S 58°06'23" E  256.84'

C10

C13

N
 3

1°
53

'3
7"

 E
  4

6.
82

'

S 58°09'43" E  522.00'

S 58°06'23" E  173.40'

C23

C22

NEW CASTLE COUNTY, DELAWARE

S.E.L.

E.P.C.

S.E.L.

SITE PLAN
Scale: 1"=40'

WETLANDS

WETLANDS
 BUFFER

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

PROJECT:

DATE:

TITLE

DESIGNED BY:

SHEET NUMBER

FOR

SITUATED IN

PLAN NOTATION
ONLY THOSE PLANS WHICH CONTAIN AN IMPRESSED SEAL OR A RED
INK SEAL OF THE RESPONSIBLE PROFESSIONAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED
VALID. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY PREPARED FOR THE
OWNER DESIGNATED HEREON. ANY MODIFICATION, REVISION,
DUPLICATION OR USE WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF FIRST
STATE ENGINEERING IS PROHIBITED. RELIANCE ON THIS PLAN FOR
ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN THAT WHICH IS INTENDED SHALL BE AT
THE SOLE DISCRETION AND LIABILITY OF THE APPLICABLE PARTY.

PLAN NOTES

CHECKED BY:

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

RECORD PLAN

VILLAGE PROPERTIES - TOWNSEND, LLC

TOWNSEND CROSSINGS

PARCEL ID. NO. 2500800002

2402NCC

04/01/2024

1" = 40'

RP2

- -

630 CHURCHMANS ROAD, SUITE 105, NEWARK, DE 19702
WWW.FIRSTSTATEENGINEERING.COM

PHONE: (302) 368-3184

APPOQUINIMINK HUNDRED
TOWN OF TOWNSEND

WOODED AREA



PARCEL AREA TABLE

PARCEL NO.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

TOTAL AREA

4,730 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,529 SF

5,053 SF

5,098 SF

2,534 SF

4,212 SF

4,503 SF

2,530 SF

PERIMETER

306.00'

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

265.95'

311.19'

313.28'

266.68'

296.58'

301.94'

266.07'

SEGMENT
LENGTHS (FT)

110.00
43.00

110.00
43.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

109.92
13.68
9.33

110.00
4.33

18.68'

108.67
30.88

109.92
61.71'

29.73
110.00
62.96

110.59'

23.03
110.00
23.07

110.59'

47.45
110.00
29.13

110.00'

52.60
110.07
29.27

110.00'

15.17
110.00
15.17
7.83

110.07
7.83'

SEGMENT BEARINGS

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 55°51'59" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 56°13'42" E

S 48°03'24" W
N 48°34'16" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 48°08'49" E

N 24°17'08" W
N 60°50'51" E
S 22°49'26" E
S 78°08'01" W

S 14°10'51" E
S 78°08'01" W
N 15°38'33" W
N 78°08'01" E

S 7°05'49" E
S 87°40'20" W
N 7°05'49" W
N 78°08'01" E

S 2°57'35" W
N 80°10'44" W

N 2°27'53" E
N 87°40'20" E

S 9°49'16" W
N 80°10'44" W

N 9°49'16" E
N 8°32'21" E
S 80°10'44" E
S 9°02'02" W

PARCEL AREA TABLE

PARCEL NO.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

TOTAL AREA

2,530 SF

3,917 SF

4,865 SF

2,532 SF

2,530 SF

4,596 SF

3,190 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

3,190 SF

3,190 SF

PERIMETER

266.00'

291.21'

308.77'

266.37'

266.00'

295.27'

278.00'

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

278.00'

278.00'

SEGMENT
LENGTHS (FT)

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

8.43
33.68

110.00
20.68
8.43

110.00'

58.92
110.33
29.53

110.00'

5.82
17.21

110.33
17.19
5.82

110.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

43.00
85.00
39.27
18.00

110.00'

110.00
29.00

110.00
29.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

SEGMENT BEARINGS

S 9°49'16" W
N 80°10'44" W

N 9°49'16" E
S 80°10'44" E

S 9°49'16" W
S 13°12'22" W
N 73°24'31" W
N 13°12'22" E
N 9°49'16" E
S 80°10'44" E

S 22°30'51" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 21°25'29" E
S 73°24'31" E

N 31°53'37" E
N 29°04'33" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 30°09'54" W
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W

S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 13°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E

PARCEL AREA TABLE

PARCEL NO.

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

TOTAL AREA

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

3,190 SF

3,190 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

3,190 SF

3,190 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

PERIMETER

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

278.00'

278.00'

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

278.00'

278.00'

266.00'

266.00'

SEGMENT
LENGTHS (FT)

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

110.00
29.00

110.00
29.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

SEGMENT BEARINGS

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

PARCEL AREA TABLE

PARCEL NO.

37

38

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

TOTAL AREA

2,530 SF

4,730 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

3,190 SF

3,190 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

5,053 SF

3,180 SF

2,530 SF

PERIMETER

266.00'

306.00'

266.00'

266.00'

278.00'

278.00'

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

299.60'

276.52'

266.00'

SEGMENT
LENGTHS (FT)

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

43.00
110.00
43.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

29.00
110.00
29.00

110.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

23.00
110.00
23.00

110.00'

38.80
46.82
39.27
22.84

110.00
41.87'

9.33
19.75

108.44
29.00

110.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

SEGMENT BEARINGS

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W

S 23°00'01" W
S 31°53'37" W
S 76°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 58°06'23" E
S 53°34'46" E
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

PARCEL AREA TABLE

PARCEL NO.

51

52

53

54

TOTAL AREA

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

2,530 SF

4,730 SF

PERIMETER

266.00'

266.00'

266.00'

306.00'

SEGMENT
LENGTHS (FT)

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

110.00
23.00

110.00
23.00'

0.51
43.00

110.00
43.00

109.49'

SEGMENT BEARINGS

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E

N 31°53'37" E
S 58°06'23" E
S 31°53'37" W
N 58°06'23" W
N 31°53'37" E

CURVE NO.

C10

C13

C14

C15

C16

C17

C19

C20

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C30

C31

C32

C34

C35

C38

C40

RADIUS

25.00'

25.00'

285.00'

285.00'

285.00'

175.00'

285.00'

175.00'

175.00'

175.00'

125.00'

125.00'

175.00'

175.00'

175.00'

175.00'

285.00'

285.00'

285.00'

285.00'

LENGTH

39.27'

39.27'

18.68'

80.40'

61.71'

30.88'

62.96'

13.68'

43.87'

207.47'

148.19'

128.44'

29.73'

23.07'

29.13'

29.27'

62.96'

23.03'

47.45'

52.60'

DELTA

90°00'00"

90°00'00"

3°45'22"

16°09'47"

12°24'25"

10°06'37"

12°39'26"

4°28'49"

14°21'48"

67°55'39"

67°55'39"

58°52'25"

9°44'02"

7°33'08"

9°32'19"

9°35'05"

12°39'26"

4°37'44"

9°32'19"

10°34'29"

CHORD LENGTH

35.36'

35.36'

18.68'

80.13'

61.59'

30.84'

62.83'

13.68'

43.76'

195.53'

139.67'

122.87'

29.69'

23.05'

29.10'

29.24'

62.83'

23.02'

47.39'

52.53'

CHORD DIRECTION

N 76°53'37" E

N 13°06'23" W

N 56°13'42" W

N 50°01'30" W

N 48°08'49" W

S 48°34'16" E

N 22°49'26" W

S 55°51'59" E

S 36°20'03" E

N 24°08'34" W

N 24°08'34" W

N 19°36'57" W

S 24°17'08" E

S 15°38'33" E

S 7°05'49" E

S 2°27'53" W

N 22°49'26" W

N 14°10'51" W

N 7°05'49" W

N 2°57'35" E

CURVE NO.

C41

C43

C44

C45

C46

C47

C48

C49

C52

C53

C54

C55

C56

C57

C58

C59

C60

C61

C62

C64

RADIUS

285.00'

285.00'

285.00'

175.00'

175.00'

175.00'

175.00'

25.00'

125.00'

125.00'

125.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

25.00'

285.00'

25.00'

285.00'

25.00'

285.00'

LENGTH

193.86'

7.83'

33.68'

7.83'

20.68'

29.53'

17.21'

39.27'

38.80'

9.35'

19.75'

34.24'

39.27'

34.24'

5.03'

17.19'

39.27'

17.19'

39.27'

58.92'

DELTA

38°58'25"

1°34'27"

6°46'13"

2°33'51"

6°46'13"

9°40'01"

5°38'07"

90°00'00"

17°47'12"

4°17'09"

9°03'14"

78°27'47"

90°00'00"

78°27'47"

11°32'13"

3°27'24"

90°00'00"

3°27'24"

90°00'00"

11°50'43"

CHORD LENGTH

190.15'

7.83'

33.66'

7.83'

20.67'

29.49'

17.20'

35.36'

38.65'

9.35'

19.73'

31.62'

35.36'

31.62'

5.03'

17.19'

35.36'

17.19'

35.36'

58.82'

CHORD DIRECTION

N 9°39'57" W

N 9°02'02" E

N 13°12'22" E

S 8°32'21" W

S 13°12'22" W

S 21°25'29" W

S 29°04'33" W

S 13°06'23" E

N 23°00'01" E

N 11°57'50" E

N 53°34'46" W

S 71°07'30" W

S 13°06'23" E

S 7°20'17" E

S 52°20'17" E

S 30°09'54" W

N 76°53'37" E

N 30°09'54" E

N 76°53'37" E

N 22°30'51" E

CURVE NO.

C66

C79

C96

RADIUS

285.00'

175.00'

125.00'

LENGTH

33.68'

13.68'

38.80'

DELTA

6°46'13"

4°28'49"

17°47'12"

CHORD LENGTH

33.66'

13.68'

38.65'

CHORD DIRECTION

N 13°12'22" E

S 55°51'59" E

N 23°00'01" E

NEW CASTLE COUNTY, DELAWARE

S.E.L.

E.P.C.

S.E.L.

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

PROJECT:

DATE:

TITLE

DESIGNED BY:

SHEET NUMBER

FOR

SITUATED IN

PLAN NOTATION
ONLY THOSE PLANS WHICH CONTAIN AN IMPRESSED SEAL OR A RED
INK SEAL OF THE RESPONSIBLE PROFESSIONAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED
VALID. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY PREPARED FOR THE
OWNER DESIGNATED HEREON. ANY MODIFICATION, REVISION,
DUPLICATION OR USE WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF FIRST
STATE ENGINEERING IS PROHIBITED. RELIANCE ON THIS PLAN FOR
ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN THAT WHICH IS INTENDED SHALL BE AT
THE SOLE DISCRETION AND LIABILITY OF THE APPLICABLE PARTY.

PLAN NOTES

CHECKED BY:

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

TABLES & DETAILS

VILLAGE PROPERTIES - TOWNSEND, LLC

TOWNSEND CROSSINGS

PARCEL ID. NO. 2500800002

2402NCC

04/01/2024

1" = 40'

RP3

- -

630 CHURCHMANS ROAD, SUITE 105, NEWARK, DE 19702
WWW.FIRSTSTATEENGINEERING.COM

PHONE: (302) 368-3184

APPOQUINIMINK HUNDRED
TOWN OF TOWNSEND

DELAWARE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 23772

DATE

TRAFFIC GENERATION DIAGRAM
TRIPS PER DAY (VEHICLES IN A.M.) [P.M. PEAK HOUR]

TRIP GENERATION - SUMMIT BRIDGE ROAD
(FULL MOVEMENT)

ENTRANCE

93(42)[38]

EXISTING ENTRANCE 'A'

SUMMIT BRIDGE ROAD (NC014)

SITE 
ROAD TRAFFIC DATA:
FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - SUMMIT BRIDGE ROAD (NC014) - MINOR ARTERIAL
POSTED SPEED LIMIT - 50 MPH
AADT =  7273 TRIPS  (RT. 71)(FROM 2022 DelDOT TRAFFIC SUMMARY)
10 YEAR PROJECTED AADT = 1.16 X 7273 TRIPS = 8437 TRIPS
DIRECTIONAL SPLIT = DESCRIBED BELOW
TRAFFIC PATTERN GROUP - 2 (FROM 2022 DelDOT TRAFFIC STUDY)
K-FACTOR = 10.9, D-FACTOR = 56.3, COMBO UNIT TRUCK % = 0.9

SITE TRIPS GENERATED:
SOURCE: ITE TRIP GENERATION MANUAL 11TH EDITION.
54 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED (USE CODE 215)
DESIGN VEHICLE: WB-40
ONE ENTRANCE - FULL MOVEMENT

TOTAL ADT FOR SITE =  361 TRIPS
% TRIP DISTRIBUTION FOR ENTRANCE = 100%
TOTAL SITE = 390 ADT (181 IN / 180 OUT), 22 AM PEAK (6 IN / 16 OUT), 28 PM PEAK
(17 IN / 11 OUT)
DIRECTION DISTRIBUTION
40% TO/FROM THE SOUTH
60% TO/FROM THE NORTH
PEAK HOUR HV% OF PROPOSED SITE = 5%

192(64)[66]

298(58)[73]168(36)[42]

3280(309)[328] 2710(126)[271]

TYPICAL SECTION MINOR STREET (50' R.O.W.)

25'-0" 25'-0"

12'-0"

POINT OF GRADE

12'-0"

2% 2%

R/WR/W

4:1 MAX

6'-0"
SIDEWALK

2%

4'-0"

6"
4:1 MAX

2%

INT. P.C.C. CURB
AND GUTTER (TYPE 3-6)

6" TOPSOIL (TYP.)
PERMANENT GRASS SEEDING

1'-8"
6'-0"

SIDEWALK 4'-0" 1'-8"

DWELLING

25 F.
Y.

S.
20

'
R.

Y.
S.

SETBACK LINE
(TYPICAL)

6'PROPOSED SIDEWALK

6' (PROP)
S.Y.S.

TYPICAL LOT
SETBACKS DETAIL

4'

PROP. INT. P.C.C. CURB
AND GUTTER (TYPE 3-6)

℄ ROADWAY



Consulting Civil Engineers ♦ Surveying ♦ Planning 

Hydraulics/Hydrology ♦ Construction Inspections 

Construction Management ♦ Land Development 

Water/Wastewater ♦ Construction Management 

 

 

Please Reply To: 

First State Engineering 

630 Churchmans Road, Suite 105 

Newark, DE 19702 

PH:  302.368.3184 

FAX:  302.368.7195 

info@FirstStateEngineering.com 

  FirstStateEngineering.com 

 

 

May 1, 2024 

 

Town of Townsend 
141 Main Street 

Townsend, DE 19734 

Attn.: Ms. Mariaelena Rivera 
 

RE: Townsend Crossings 

 Major Subdivision with Rezoning – PRELIMINARY PLAN 

Parcel #2500800002 

 Town of Townsend, New Castle County, Delaware 

 FSE File #23-03-NCC 

 
Dear Ms. Rivera: 

 

Please find enclosed ten (10) copies of the Preliminary plan for the above referenced proposed subdivision. 
 

We would like to request to be placed on the May Planning Commission and Town Council agendas for 

consideration. 
 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or need any additional information. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 

 
 

Scott Lobdell, P.E.            

 

 



 

A Council – Manager Municipality 

Located on the Web at townsend.delaware.gov  

 
 

 

The Mayor and Council of the Town of Townsend 
141 Main Street, P.O. Box 223, Townsend, DE 19734 

Phone (302) 378-8082    Fax (302) 378-7099 

 

  
Introduced by: Mayor S. Lobdell & 

Councilman J. Mertz 
Introduction on: January 10, 2024 

ORDINANCE 2024-003 - 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 12 OF THE TOWNSEND 

MUNICIPAL CODE AS RELATED TO TRASH AND RECYCLING 

COLLECTION AND CHAPTER 4 OF THE TOWNSEND MUNICIPAL 

CODE AS RELATED TO THE FEE SCHEDULE 

 

WHEREAS, the current Townsend Municipal Code prohibits dumpsters at 

properties which are zoned in residential districts; and  

 

WHEREAS, property owners within residential districts may need to utilize 

dumpsters from time to time to for matters related to trash collection and building 

permits; and  

 

WHEREAS, safeguards must be put into place when allowing for permits in 

residential districts to ensure no safety concerns are presented with the temporary 

dumpster.   

 

NOW THERFORE, be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Townsend, 

as follows:  

 

Section 1.  Amends Chapter 12.12.080 Trash And Recycling Collection of the 

Townsend Municipal code by striking the following as noted with strikethrough and 

adding the following as noted by underline: ***I recommend creating a new 

ordiance section to address dumpsters as a whole, since there are no regulations for 

permit dumpsters/garbage containers ex.: 

https://library.municode.com/de/wilmington/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PT

IIWICO_CH45UT_ARTIVSOWA_DIV1GE_S45-251MADUGACO ** 

 

12.12.080 Trash And Recycling Collection 

A. Trash must be placed at the curb no earlier than 24 hours prior to scheduled 

trash pick-up. All trash containers must be removed from the sidewalk area 

no later than 24 hours after trash pick-up. Trash containers and/or bags should 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Mayor 

Scott Lobdell 

 

 

Councilman  

Joshua Mertz, 

PhD 

 

 

Councilman 

Joseph Bangura, 

PhD 

 

 

Councilman 

Matthew 

Chapman 

 

 

Councilman 

Marcus Suhr 

 

 

 

Town Manager 

Antonina Tantillo, 

MPA, 

https://library.municode.com/de/wilmington/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIIWICO_CH45UT_ARTIVSOWA_DIV1GE_S45-251MADUGACO
https://library.municode.com/de/wilmington/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIIWICO_CH45UT_ARTIVSOWA_DIV1GE_S45-251MADUGACO


 

 

 

be placed at the edge of the property so as not to block the sidewalk. 

B. Commercial and retail establishments and apartments may use the trash company of 

their choice (preferably whoever has the town contract) that best suits their needs. 

The business owner must supply the town a letter stating what trash company they 

have arrangements with and will pay their trash bill directly to the company they 

use rather than the town. 

C.  Dumpsters will not be permitted at properties that are zoned residential.  

C.   Dumpsters or portable storage containers for the purpose of remodeling, storage, 

cleanup of debris, etc., must be permitted by the Town for a stated period of time not 

to exceed two (2) weeks of time, or the time period for which there is an active 

building permit open on the property, within residential districts (R, R-1, R-1A, R2, 

and R-3).  Such dumpster(s) or portable storage containers are subject to the following 

limitations:     **may be beneficial to have an app submitted for all districts 

considering all is relatively close to one another** 

1. Dumpster(s) or portable storage containers when placed in the front of the 

property shall be place on hard concrete or asphalt surface. The location shall not 

affect the health safety, and/or welfare of the neighborhood in accordance with 

Section 10.04.010 of the Townsend Municipal Code.  

2. Portable storage container(s) when stored in the rear or side of the property, must 

meet the set back requirements in accordance to that of an accessory structure. 

3. No dumpster shall be overfilled and shall be emptied in accordance with Section 

12.12.010 of the Townsend Municipal Code. 

4. Every dumpster container shall conform to all local, state and federal 

specifications. 

5. Fees for Dumpster Permits will be outlined in Chapter 4.12 Fee Schedule.    

 

Section 2. Amends Chapter 4.12.020 Fees Enumerated of the Townsend Municipal code 

by adding the following as noted by underline: 

 

3. Permit Fees  

 

Dumpster fee : $0  - **discuss with Jen if we should have a minimal amount like 

$10 to cover costs of paperwork/admin. Possible raise $1 per year ? *** 

 

Violation of Dumpster Permit application: The fir st violation a monetary penalty 

shall be assessed of not less than $100 nor more than $500. Each subsequent 

violation shall incur a penalty of not less than $200 nor more than $1,000. 

 

Section 3.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

Adopted by at least a majority of the Council members of the Town of Townsend on this 

____day of  ___________________, 2024. 

 



 

 

 

 

Introduction  

Final Reading  

Adoption  

 

Signed By 

 

 

Mayor 

Town of Townsend, Delaware 

 

Attest:   

 Town Clerk 

 



 

A Council – Manager Municipality 

Located on the Web at townsend.delaware.gov  

 
 

 

The Mayor and Council of the Town of Townsend 
141 Main Street, P.O. Box 223, Townsend, DE 19734 

Phone (302) 378-8082    Fax (302) 378-7099 

 

  

Introduced by: 

Mayor Lobdell 

 

Introduction on: 

January 10th, 2024 

 

ORDINANCE 2024-001  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 18.04.010 OF THE TOWN CODE 

TO FURTHER CLARIFY PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS  

***** 

WHEREAS, the Town Code currently states that all new construction within the 

Town requires inspection prior to occupancy or use; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Code currently states that a fee shall be paid for all permits 

and inspections; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 08.02 adopted February 20, 2008, established a permitting 

fee for all items of new construction which require a permit; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to clarify that said permits are required to be 

obtained prior to the start of construction and/or alteration. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of 

Townsend, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: That Section 18.04.010 A. of the Code of Ordinances, Town of 

Townsend, Delaware is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Permitting and Inspection of Construction Activities.   

 

A listing of required permits in accordance with the ICC Code is provided at 

Townsend Town Hall and on the Town websitre.  

 

Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 

place, demolish, or change the occupancy of a building, or structure, or other item 

listed in the reference, including but not limited to homes, commercial buildings, 

garages, sheds, fences, decks, patios and additions, or to cause any such work to be 

done, shall first make application to the building official and obtain the required 

permit in accordance with the ICC Code.  In addition to timely obtaining the required 

permit, an inspection or inspections conducted by officials of the town or its designee 

shall be required of all new construction enlargement, alteration, repair, movement, 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Mayor 

Scott Lobdell 

 

 

Councilman  

Joshua Mertz, 

PhD 

 

 

Councilman 

Joseph Bangura, 

PhD 

 

 

Councilman 

Matthew 

Chapman 

 

Councilman 

Marcus Suhr 

 

 

 

Town Manager 

Antonina Tantillo, 

MPA, 

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by / Condensed
by 



 

 

 

placement, demolition, or change in the occupancy of a building or structure; prior 

to any occupancy or use of the building or structure. 

 

 

SECTION 2: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 3: In the event any existing Ordinances or parts of Ordinances are in 

conflict herewith, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. 

SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.  

 

Adopted by at least a majority of the Council members of the Town of Townsend on this 

____day of  ___________________, 2024. 

 

 

Introduction  

Public Hearing  

Final Reading  

Adoption  

 

 

Signed By 

 

 

 

Mayor 

Town of Townsend, Delaware 

 

Attest:   

 Town Clerk 

 

 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"


	PACKET_07-10-2024 Town Council Meeting Agenda_.pdf (p.1-47)
	Recommendation Letter_TOWNSEND POLICE DEPARTMENT.pdf (p.1)
	PACKET_07-10-2024 Town Council Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.2-47)
	07-10-2024 Town Council Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	Troy Geiger_Staying on Planning Commission.pdf (p.3)
	Sean Waterland_PC_RE_ Interest in becoming a member.pdf (p.4-6)
	Sheryl Rojas_BOA.pdf (p.7)
	JULY 2024 MONTHLY POLICE REPORT.pdf (p.8)
	Townsend Monthly Engineering Report_July2024.pdf (p.9-11)
	Irrigation System_DNTET105 - 2024.06.20 - Letter of Recommendation_Update.pdf (p.12-13)
	DRAFT Resolution 2024-006 FY 25 Budget.pdf (p.14-15)
	FY25 Draft Budget 071024 Meeting.pdf (p.16-25)
	Road Program_DNTET106 - 2024.06.12 - Proposal for Services.pdf (p.26-28)
	Planning Commission Recommendation Letter - Major Subdivision - 100 Karins Blvd_2500800002.pdf (p.29)
	Application-for-Subdivision-Land-Development.pdf (p.30-32)
	Major-Subdivision-or-Land-Development-Checklist.pdf (p.33-37)
	Townsend Crossings Prelim Plans.pdf (p.38-40)
	RP1 COVER SHEET
	RP2 RECORD PLAN
	RP3 TABLES & DETAILS

	Prelim App - 05-01-2024.pdf (p.41)
	DRAFT Ordinance No.2024-003- Dumpster Ordinance.pdf (p.42-44)
	DRAFT Ordinance No 2024-001 Revision #1__.pdf (p.45-46)


	James Reyes_Renewing planning commission status.pdf (p.48)

